/
\H

Z@l‘x‘"'

L/

Annual Report
2023-24

CONTENTS
Notice to AGM......cccceuveeeee ceseseseesesanssssesesesesensensecssessensensenssessensenseenses 01
Directors’ RePOIt...ccccccccececnccccecececestcncscsssecscacsesesesssscscscsssssssssssssscsssssessssssssssssssns 06

Annexures to Directors’ Report

Annexure-l: Fraud Report intimated by statutory auditors .....cccccccceececceseeceenees 22
Annexure-ll: Comment of C&AG u/s 143(6)(B) of the Companies Act, 2013...... 26
Annexure-lll: CEO and CFO Certification.......ccceeceeceneienceniencecceecenccecceceeccecseeccenes 27
Annexure-1V: MGT-9...... cececsesseseseeseenescssessssesensessescssesesensesnesesse 28
Annexure-V: AOC-2............... cececsecsesecee ceccecccscesessesense cececsecscseee 38
Balance sheet......c.cccceceecececccceccececcecceccee csevssessessssesessesessassasesessssnessessssasesseness 46
Statement of Profit and loss............ ceeceestesensenstesenssnsensssesscssnsesesesessnsases 47
Cash flow statement..........ccceeeeeeeeencenccncceccccnncee cecscsnescecens cecceeceeceeceesees 48
Notes to financial statements........ceeceeieeioncinccetenconcecsesncsecssssncssessessessessessessens 50

Independent Auditors’ Report ceeesesesctsecesessstessesesesessssssesesesessseseesesssesesssssns 102




HMN,
Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

{JV of Bharal Petrofewrm & GAIL Gas)

Matice
Mitie s bereby given that the 8% Aol Georral Mesting, ol the Bdembiers of HARIMWAR NATURALGAS PRIVATE
LIMITED will be beld physaally on Friday, 5 Sephembar 2024 at %30 am_ {I5T) at HNGFL Office, House no, 129, Rew
Haridwar Colony, behind Matrichayas Medical Centre, Ranipur Mode, Haridwar- 248401 Uttarakhand IN to transact the
fallowing masineas:

Cirdinary Husiness:

1. Ta recelve, conslder and adopt the sudited standalone Financlal Stalements for the financial vear ended 314 Mapch
2004, Directors’ Report ncloding Annexure thereto, Tndependent Audibors” Reporl and the comments thereon of
the Comptroller & Anditor General of India, if any and to pass the following resolation, with g without
modification (s}, as an Ordinary Resolutinne

“HESOLVED THAT sudited standalone Financial Statements for the financial year endied 314March 2024, ldependent
Auditors’ Repuort, Commsents thireon of the Conptroller & Auditor General of India and Direclars’ Report incleding
Anpexures thereto, be and are hereby approved and adopted ™

2 Toauthorkee the Board of Directors of Company to fix the remueneration ol Ehe Slatubory Andiior {s) of the Company
in ferms of the provisiois of Section 142 of the Companics Ad, 2005, wha was appobnbed o Statatery Awdiaes for
the FY 202425 by Comptroller and Auditor General in terms of provisions of section 139 of Companies Act, 2003
and rules thenmmder to pass the following resolution, with or without modification (s}, &5 an Ordinary Resalution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and s hershy authorised to decide and fis. the
pemeration of the Statatory. Auditoer () of the Company i terms of the proviskns of Section 142 of the Companics
Act, 2013, appolnied as Statutory Avditors for the FY 2024-25 by Comptroller and Anditor Geseral of Indla in terms of
provisions of section 139 of Companies Act, 2003 and rules thereurder, as oy be deeswed fis by the boand”

ﬁ;un;la.'l Bl

3. Toappuint Shri Ajay Sinba {L1N: 08585727) as 2 Non-Executive Diroctor
To consider, and If thought Ht to pass, with or witheal modification{s), the following reselution as an Ordinary

Hesolution;

"RESOLYED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 152 and all other applicabbe provisions if any, of the Compariles
Act 200 [“The Act™), read with The Compandes {(Appodotment amd Qualification of Directors) Rabes 2114, incheding
any statatery. modifications or reenactments thenssd, and enabling provisions of Artichs of Association of ihe
Crampany. Zhri Ajay Sk (DML (EBRSTIT), wilis wig: Eppjl.l'll-['ﬂ h}" the Boand o Directors as an Additional Directar
with effect from 127 April, 2024 aid holids office wp to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting under Section 141
read with Companies (A ppointment amd Qualification of Directors) Rules, 3004 and who bas consented to act as
Directur be and is hereby appainted & a Chrector of tha Convpany.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT OS5 of the Company be and o hereby authorized to file necessary e-Forms and
diociments with the reglstrar of the Company and to do all sich acts, desds, things and matters & misy be necessany
anl expedient 1o give effect to the aloeead resalation,”

4 Toappoint Shri Cherchil Gupta (DEN: 10600542) a5 a Non-Executive Lirector

To conudes, and W thought At to pass. with or without modification(s), the following nsolution as an Crdinary
Rasalicticm:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisipms af Section 152 and all other applicable provisions o any, of the Comipanles
At 003 (“The Act™s, read with The Companles (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 3014, incdueding

any stibutory modifications or re-enactments thirsod and enabling | iy o jehes of Asgociation of (e
comipany. Shri Cherchil Gupta (DING 060 52), whe was appainted % B Erectors @s an Additiomal

Corporate Offlce: Hawse No.-129, New Harldwar Calony, Behind Matrichaya Medici] Cgatre, Ranipur Mosle, Haridwar-249401 (1K)
Reged Office Haridwar Natgral Gas Private Limited, COCO-CNG Station, Khasea No. 569570,
Mear Govind Garden, Jawakapur, Hapidwar-249404 [ILK ).
Emal I infodPhngpl.co.in, Phone No, D1334- 220333, Wehsite: wow ngplin
CIN: L403000R20 1EPTCORTO04, GETIN/UIN: DSAADCHETMING 20 Page 1 of 122



hrector with effect from date of allotment of DIN Le 230 April, 2024 anad holds offics up to the date of ensiuing
Annunl Genral Meeting under Section 161 read with Companics (Appointment and Qualification af Disectors) Balkes,
114 and who lkas consentad 1o act gs Director be dnd is hereby appoinbed as a Dirsctor of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT €5 of the Company be and s horeby authorized 1o fle necessary w-Forms aml
dorumenis with the ol the Company and 1o do all such acts, deeds, things and mattcrs as may be netessary
and expadiont to ghve fo e aforesaicl resolution.”

5 Toralify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor appainted by the Board of Directars of the Company for the
financlal yeas 303835 pursuant to Section 148 and all ather applicable provisions of Companies Adt, 2013 and rules
thereunder.

To conskder, and U thooght fit, o pass, with or without medificationgs), the following resolution as an Ondinary
Resolatiar:

“RESOLVED THAT pumsuant o the provisons of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act. 3013 read with Rule 14 of
Companies (Ausdit and Mstitom) Rules, 2004 and edhir nppth.'.u.l:l.lt provisions of the Companies Act, 2003, the
retmnerition of Rs 36,000, <{Rupees thirty-five thousand only) plas G5T @ 18% and out of pocket expenditure limabed
ter M6 15000 -and  payable ke M 0s Chandm Wadbhwa and Co, Mes Delid h:l'p'lﬂg FRN 3%, for conducting cost
auditof the Company for the lnancial year 2024-25, as approved by the Board of Directon of fhe Company in its 32~
Board Meeting held on 2407 20024, be and 8 bereby il

By the order of the Board of Directons

< - \Te e
Place: Noida | di Maridwar Shikha
Doate: 24.07.2024 -\;“'._'1_ P iCa § Sacretary)
% @ e
Reggistered Office: =y

Flaridwar Natural Gas Private Limbted
COCDCHEG Stathvn, Khasra Mo, 564570,
Mear Govind Garden, Jawalapur,
Haridwar, Uttarakhand, Tndia, 249404

NOTES:

1) A MEMBER ENTITLED TD ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING MAY APPOINT PROXY OR mu:&:rﬁ T
ATTEND AND ON A POLL TO VOTE THEREAT INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /HERSELF. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER CHF THE COMPANY.

(7 An instrument appointing a Proxy o be effective must be lodged ai the Reglstered Office af the Company at least 48
hoars before the commencemont of the Meoting.

(@ Motice-af the Meeting along with the route magp of the venue of the Mecting @ placed on the websiic of the Company.

(4) A person can act as a prosy on behall of members ot exceeding fifty (30) and holding i the aggregate nat more thin
ten{10) pesoent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, A member holding moe tan k(1)
percent of the tatal share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appeint a single prrson as proxy and such
person shall not act as @ proxy for any other person or sharetolder.

(30 During e perdod boglaning 24 hours bedone the Hme Hoed for the commencement of the meetimg and ending with the
conclusion of the meeting, o menber would be entitled Lo nspect the provies lodged at any tme during the business
Isars of the Company, provided that not bess than toee days of nolice inowriting s given o the Company.

fa) Members, proses attending the meeting are reguestesd 1o bring thedr duly (lled admission) attendance slips seat aloog
with the natice of anmaal general oweeting at the meeting,
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{71 As per provisions of Clause 34, 11 ol the General Cirenlar No20/ X120 dated 5® May 2020 e matters of Speclals
Business of e accompanying notice, are considered o be unavoldable by the Boaand and henee, form part ol this peice.

(8} The Reglster of Directon and thelr sharcholding, maintained w/s 170 of fhe Companies Act, I3 and Reglster il
Contracts or Armngomants in which Directors are interesied maintained /s 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all
ather documents referred 1o in the notice and explanatory statement, will be available for inspection by the members af
the Company a1 Registered oifioe of the Company during business hours TR0 A o 060 PM, (exeept Sabinday and
Sunday) up to the dite of Annual General Mevting and will slso be avadlable during the Annual General Meeting
Mumbers seeking inspecticn of any other infarmation with regard to the accounts of any matier 10 be placed at the AGM
are rsquestad 10 write 1o the company on or before 6% Sepiember 2024 through email oo ctogplco iy - The same will
b repiied by the oompany. suitably,

() Pursaant 1o Section 13% () of the Comipanis Act 213 the auditors of the Government Company are appointed by the

& At General of Todia (ChAG) and 0 terms of Section 142 .of the Companies Act 213, the remuneation

hits 10 be Fxed by the company (n tha Anrual General Meeting of in such mannor as the company 0 Genesal Mecting

riay determing, The members of the company in P Annual General Mesting held on 1509.202% had anthorizal the

Board of Directors (o fix the remmneration of Statubory Auditors for the Financial Year 202324, Accordingly, the floard

of [rirectors has faed anedit foe of Ba, 100,000 towards audit fow for the Statutary. Awsdilors for the financial year 205-24

and Limited review foes of Rs 25,000/ per quarher plus applicable taxes and travelling expenses al actual for
conducting anct limited to R 15000/ p.aand Bs 10,000/~ pes quarter for Limited Review of sccoants of the company.

(1) Corporate memalsers intending to send thedr puthorized representalives o attend ihe meeting ane advised 1o send a
dully certified copy of the Buard Resolution, Authorisation ete. authorizing thcds reprssentative to attend and vobe ot the
meeting. The said Resolution )/ suthorisation 1o be senl to the company secretary ot emadl contact csdhogpl.co.in and (o be
went through coudes af address, House Mo-129, Mew Hardwar Colony, Bohind Matrichaya Medical Centre, Ranipur
Mode, Haridwor-24%401 {LLE).

{11 Mstice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 202324 is being sent only through dlecironic moede 1o members.
Members may note that the Notice and Annnal Report 2233 will also be available an the company’s website

R tiL

{12 Moawe of tvi Directors of the company §s in any way related bo aach othar.

1% A staternent pursusnt to Section 102 (1) of e Companies Act. 2013, refaling to the Special Busiess (o bt fransarisd od
AGRY bs anneed hesea,

(14 Vioting ak the AGM [by Show of hands or Instant Pall}
The Chalrman may decide to conduct vote by shaw of hands, unless a demand for poll is made by any membar i
accordance with section 109 of the Act.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
[ Prveant to Section 102 of the Comperies Act, 2003 and Secretarial 5lendard-2|

Ttem no.
To appoint Shei Ajay Sinha {DIM: (85H57IT) as a Noo-Exeoufive Dinecior

Shri Ajay Sinha (DN 0AS85727), was appointed as en Additional Director of the Company with effect from 12th April
21, purssant to sedtion 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shei Ajay Sinha [[HM: 08585717), holds odfici= as Direclor up e
the date of this Anmaal General Meeting and is eligilde for appointment as Director.

The appolnitment of Shri Ajay Sinha (DIN: 06585727), a8 Director shall be effective upon approval by the members i the
Hl;rﬂ.i:'l.::;.

Shri Ajay Sinha (DIN: 0SSES7Z7), 1s not disqualified From being appointed as a Dirsctor in terms of Section 168 of the Act
and has given his consent 1o act a5 4 Director, In the opinion of the Boanl. Shri Ajay Sinha {DIN: (B585727), possesses
pppropriste skilks, experience, and knowledge

Thie Buisd accordingly recommends the resolufion as set out i lbem 82 of the notice for appeoval of the members,

Mo directors, key managorial personnel, mansiger o their relatives are interested or concemed in the resolution et Shri
Afay Sinha (DN 0858577, o thi extent that he s a Director of the Company,

Details of the Appointee Directors

The dietail of the Directors who was appointed 8 given ander in purseance with the Secretarial Standard-2 issaed undor
Section T1Eof the Companies Act, 201

| 5r. Particalars Shef Afay Sinha (DIN; 05585727)
| ™0
i A 55 Yoars
2z Cualification Electrical Engincering LT Roorkee and MEA
4. | Datv of First Appointment on Board 12 April 2024
B Shareholding in the Company NIL
fi Relatishilp with otber Directors, Manoger w_Ei:]r Mo relationship with other  Rey Marﬁg@'ral_
Manngerial Pemsonne] Perseanel of Directom
7 Mumber of Board Meetings attended during the year 2
8 Diiher Darectorships msd Memborahips/ I
Chabrmanship o Cormmiltees ol ther boasnds

Item o, 4:
To appaint M Hmd’aﬂﬂﬂ!! irectior

Shri Cherchil Gupta (TDMN: 10601542}, was appeinted as en Additional Dinector of the Company with effect from 23 April
2024, pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act, 2003 Shel Cherchil Gupta {DIN: 106015425, holds offioe as Director up
{o the date ol this Amneal General Mesting and is oligible for appointment 85 Cireclor.

The appointment of Shri Cherchil Gupta (THN; 1061542), as Director shall be elfective wpon approval by the members in
the Mucting
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Skl Cheechil Gupta {DEN: 10601543), i mot disquatified from belng appodntsd #s & Director in lerms of Section 164 of the
Act and has ghven his consent bo oct a8 o Director, In the opinion of the Board, Shei Cherchil Gapta {DIN: 10601542,
prsusses approprisie skills, experience, and knowledge.

The Board accordingly reconmencds the resolubion ws set out i Hem #3 of the notice tor appreval of the members.

M diroctors, key managerial personnel, manager or thesr relatives are inlerestest or concerned in the resolutlon except Shel
Cherghil Eupﬂiﬂlﬂ:m bes e et dhad he s & Dhirector of tho Company’,

Delafls of the Appointes Diredors

The dotail of the Directors wivo was appainted i given under in pursuance with the Secretarial Standird-2 ssoed under
Section 118 of the Companias Act. 2005

S5¢ Particuliors Shurl Clyerchll Gupta [TP: 10601562}
Py
L A A Years
(2 Qualification BE {Chemyical), 1T Roorkes
Cenified Encrgy Auditar- 2005
A, Diade of Fist Appoinbsent on Board 230 April 2024
H Sharehobling in the Company ML
f, Helationship with  other Dhrectors/Manager or Fey [ No ralationship  with other Ky hlanagerial
hanagarial Personnel Puiscamied or Directors
7 Number af Board Meetings attended during the vear 3
& Orther Directonships and Memberships/ No
Chairmanship of Committers of other Boards

Liem M. 5=

To ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company for the
financlal year 2024-2% pursuant to Section 148 and all cther applicable provislons of Companies Act 2013 and rules
thereufider,

The Baasd has approved in its 52 masting held on July 34, 2124, the appointment of M/s Chandra Wadliwa anad Co, New
Daliil having FRN 0002t o remunesation of Bs 35,000/ {Rupees thirty-five thousand anly) plus G5T & 18% andd ot of
pocket expenditine limited 1o/ Rs 15,000/ -0 conduct the Cost Audit of the Company for the financial year 02435,

Tn accordance with the provisions of Section 148 (%) of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with Rabe 14 of Companies (Awlit &
Auditor Rules], 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is sequieed 1o be ratified by the menbers of the Company

The Board accordingly recommencs the sesolution as st out i lem #6 to be passed by the members of the company as an
ondinary msoluthon,

Mo directors, key managerial personnel, manager, of their relatives are mterested or concerned in the resolution.

By the order of the Board of Directors

Flage Modda
Dhate: 24.07.2024
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Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members
Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited (HNGPL)

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 8" (eighth) Annual Report of Haridwar Natural
Gas Private Limited (HNGPL) together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial
Year ended 31% March, 2024.

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited (HNGPL) is a Joint Venture of Bharat Petroleum
Corporation Limited (BPCL) and Gail Gas Limited (GGL) (BPCL: GGL 50:50) incorporated as

private company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on 20.04.2016.

The Company is established with the objective to develop to city gas distribution (CGD) network
in the city of Haridwar, Uttarakhand as authorized by Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory
Board (PNGRB). The Geographical Area (GA) constitutes the entire Haridwar district of
approximately 2305 sq. km.

The authorized and paid-up share capital of the company as on 31% March 2024 is Rs. 90 Crore
and Rs. 87.16 Crores respectively (the paid up share capital is increased to Rs 87.16 Crore w.ef
date of allotment of additional equity shares on right issue i.e 17.04.2023) , the same is held by
BPCL and GGL in the ratio of 50:50.

STATEMENT OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

Amount Rs.in Lacs
Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
2023-24 2022-23

Revenue from operations

10989.17 9174.16
Other Income 168.37 38.23
Expenses other than Depreciation, Finance
Cost, Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 9115.94 7703.08
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Profit before Depreciation, Finance Cost,

Exceptional Items and Tax Expense 2041.60 1509.31
Less: Depreciation/Amortization/Impairment 499 46 45132
Profit/loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional

items and Tax Expense 1542.14 1057.99
Less: Finance Costs 742.09 641.36
Profit/loss before Exceptional Items and Tax

Expense 800.05 416.63
Add/(less): Exceptional Items _ )
Profit/loss before Tax Expense 800.05 416.63
Less: Tax Expense (Current &Deferred) 203.90 18939
Profit/loss for the year (1) 596.15 227.24
Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) ) )
Total (1&2) 596.15 227.24
Balance of profit/loss for earlier years 101.71 (125.53)
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption

Reserve - -
Less: Transfer to Reserves - -
Balance carried forward 697.86 101.71

*Figures in the bracket indicate the negative figure

REVIEW OF THE OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY:

During the financial year ended 31st March 2024, your Company’s total income was
Rs 11,157.54 Lakh as against Rs. 9212.39 Lakh during the previous financial year 2022-
23. Total expenses other than Exceptional Items and Tax Expense for the year were Rs
10,357.49 Lakh as against Rs. 8795.76 Lakh during the previous financial year 2022-23.
The Company has earned a profit of Rs 596.15 Lakh as against profit of Rs. 227.24 Lakh

during the previous financial year 2022-23.

PHYSICAL PERFORMANCE:

Our company has commissioned 1 CNG stations and 1292 domestic PNG connections
during FY 2023-24 as against 3 CNG stations 2759 domestic PNG connections during FY

2022-23. Key physical performances are as given below:

Nature of activity UOM Physical performance
FY 2023-24 | FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
CNG stations No.s 1 3 0

Page 7 of 122



Nature of activity UOM Physical performance
Domestic PNG connections | No.s 1292 2759 8599
Comme.rc1a1 PNG No.s 05 12 1
connections

Industrial PNG connections | No.s 12 11 1
Steel Pipeline construction | Kms 0.0228 0 0.27
MDPE pipeline construction | Kms 20.802 13.45 129.18
CNG sale MMSCM 10.01 9.22 7.02
PNG sale (incl. Comm & |y jo oy 4.86 3.06 15
industrial consumers)

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE:

The total cumulative capital expenditure incurred up to FY 2023-24 is Rs. 21293.42 Lakh against
Rs 20425.11 Lakh. up to FY 2022-23 which includes.

e Rs. 13532.37 Lakh towards fixed assets capitalized on account of CNG stations and PNG
network capitalizations up to FY 2023-24 (Rs.12325.42 Lakh up to FY 2022-23)

e Rs. 690.95 Lakh capitalized on account of Land up to FY 2023-24 (690.95 Lakh up to FY
2021-22,2022-23)

e Rs. 111.15 Lakh towards other assets on accounts of furniture fixture, equipment, computer
etc. (Rs. 71.52 Lakh in FY 2022-23)

e Rs. 724.72 Lakh for lease hold land at Jawalapur & Roorkee. (Rs. 724.72 Lakhs up to
FY2022-23)

e Rs. 6234.23 Lakh towards capital work in progress of under construction project expenses in
FY 2023-24 (Rs.6581.47 Lakh in FY 2022-23)

DIVIDEND

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year ending 31 March
2024 due to due to funds requirement for expansion and completion of project.

TRANSFER TO RESERVE

Your directors did not propose any amount to reserve during the financial year under review.
However, Company has transferred profit after tax to other equity as retained earning amounting
Rs. 697.86 Lakh.

TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

During the period under review, there is no unpaid/unclaimed dividend which is required to
transfer in IEPF (Investor Education and Protection Fund) as per the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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CHANGE IN NATURE OF THE BUSINESS

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.
PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was
outstanding, as on the balance sheet closure date.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the company is Rs. 90 Crore. The paid-up share capital of the
company is Rs. 87.16 Crore as on 31° March 2024.

The paid-up share capital has increased to Rs 87.16 Crore from Rs.44.40 Crore as on
17.04.2023.

CREDIT RATING

M/s India Rating & Research (IND-Ra) affirms Long-Term Issuer Rating at IND A-/stable to the
Company with Stable Outlook. Further, for non-fund-based limits the rating is affirmed at IND
A-/ stable/IND Al.

PROCUREMENT FROM MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES (MSME)

In terms of the Public Procurement Policy for MSEs policy, During the year company has
procured 52% from MSME venders as against the target of Govt. of India of 25%.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT

Our Company believes that safety of its workforce and all its stakeholders is of critical
significance to its functioning and success. We have incorporated all the necessary measures to
promote the highest level of Safety, Health, Environment, and loss control in all areas of
implementation of the CGD projects; Natural Gas transmission; distribution through CGD
network and CNG systems installed within and outside the city boundary and the supply of PNG
to various customers with clear emphasis on improving the environment for sustainable
development. Our Company is committed to promoting globally comparable levels of HSE
management in the areas of its business. A number of initiatives have been taken to ensure the
safety of both people and equipment. Various measures and best practices have been put in place
to avoid injuries, accidents, or any other untoward incident.

The ability to share knowledge across organizational boundaries is a key aspect of a sound HSE
culture. Our Company held several knowledge-sharing and training sessions to create awareness
on all critical issues related to health and safety during work and beyond to internal and external
stakeholders. Our Company is complying with all relevant statutory rules and regulations
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including PESO, Factory Act 1948, Gas Cylinder Rule 2016, PNGRB regulations on safety,
occupational health, and environment in order to achieve utmost safety in all its working and
business activities”.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The policy of Corporate Governance is not applicable on the Company; however, the Company
believes that good corporate governance is critical in establishing a positive organizational
culture and it is evident by responsibility, accountability, consistency, fairness, and transparency
towards its stakeholders.

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or Courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Comptroller and Auditors General of India had appointed Hemant Arora & Company LLP,
Chartered  Accountants,  Haridwar  (Registration =~ No.  CR0753) vide letter
No./CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, HNGPL(1)/279 dated 21/09/2023 as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 from 7" Annual General
Meeting, until the conclusion of 8" Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Statutory Auditors have given a qualified opinion in Internal Financial Controls over
Financial reporting that there is an ineffective Internal Control system of Billing ERP Software
used by the company.

Management Reply: Requisite actions have been taken to strengthen the internal checks and
controls in ERP- Billing software such as the authorization matrix have been revised and
dedicated data entry operator have only authorization to receive the payment and update in ERP
software. All authorization, w.r.to modification in the ERP post billing are given to back office-
only single point and only by the management approvals as per SOP has been framed at
company.

Appointment Letter of Statutory Auditors by Comptroller and Auditors General of India for the
Financial Year 2024-25 is yet to be received.

DETAIL OF FRAUD REPORTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 143 OF THE

COMPANIES ACT 2013 READ WITH RULE 13 OF THE COMPANIES (AUDIT AND
AUDITORS) RULES, 2014

Upon surfacing of fraud and irregularities at Billing Section of the Company, Management
initiated necessary remedial actions and brought the same to the knowledge of Statutory Auditors
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of the company M/s Hemant Arora & Company LLP who accordingly reported an incident of
fraud to the Board vide its letter dated 08.04.2024. The report is attached as an Annexure-1 with
the following details:

(a) Nature of Fraud with description.
(b) Approximate Amount involved.
(c) Parties involved.

As remedial action regarding the incident of fraud the board advised completing the
reconciliation of the difference of approximately Rs. 12.7 lacs in receivables between Tally and
ERP billing software as on 31st Mar’24, at the earliest. The board further emphasized close
monitoring and implementation of regular strong internal checks & controls in DPNG Billing
along with ERP Software in a time bound manner as per the action plan presented.

COMPTROLLER AND AUDITORS GENERAL’S COMMENT

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued its report and have conducted the
supplementary audit of the financial statements of HNGPL for the year ended 31 March 2024
under section 143(6)(a) of the Act.

As per CAG’s Report nothing significant is found that gives rise to any comments upon or
supplement to Statutory Auditor’s report. (Annexure-II)

INTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company has appointed M/s Dang & Company, Chartered Accountants, Dehradun (FRN:
019904C) as Internal Auditor for the financial year 2023-24. M/s Dang & Company, Chartered
Accountants carried out Internal Audit of the Company for FY 2023-24.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

As per Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with clarification to Rule 9 of Companies,
(Appointment and  Remuneration  of  Managerial  Personnel)  Rules, 2014,
outstanding loans or borrowings from banks or public financial institutions existing on the last
date of latest audited financial statement i.e. 31st March 2023 is lower than Rs.100 Crore,
therefore secretarial audit is not applicable on the company for the Financial Year 2023-2024.

COST AUDITOR AND COST RECORDS

The Company has appointed M/s Chandra Wadhwa & Company, Cost Auditors, New Delhi
(FRN: 000239) as Cost Auditor for the financial year 2023-24 as per provisions of section 148 of
Companies Act, 2013. The company has maintained proper records and accounts of the same as
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required under the applicable provisions of act and rules thereunder.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Following are the particulars of appointments and cessation of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of your Company during the Financial Year 2023-24:

S. Name of the Designation DIN/PAN Date of Date of cessation
No. Director appointment
1. Shri Raman | Chairman and 07836490 01.07.2021 25.04.2023*
Chadha Non-
Executive
Director
2. | Smt. Nalini Non- 08467649 30.05.2022 25.04.2023*
Malhotra Executive
Director
3. | Shri Kapil | Chairman and 09592775 25.04.2023* 30.06.2023**
Kumar Jain Non- (Cessation of Chairmanship)
Executive 12.12.2023 %%
Director (Cessation of Directorship)
4. | Shri Pankaj Non- 10145616 25.04.2023* -
Gupta Executive
Director
5. | Shri  Pradeep Non- 08313137 01.07.2021 10.06.2023***
Goyal Executive
Director
6. | Shri T.V | Chairman and 09581136 13.06.2023*** -
Pandiyan Non- (Date of Appoir.ltment
) as Additional Director)
Executive
Director 01.07.2023
(Date of appointment
as Chairman)
7. | Shri  Yougesh Non- 09655483 12.12.2023 %% -
Kumar Executive
Director

*Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 25.04.2023 took note the
nomination of Shri Kapil Kumar Jain as Chairman and Additional director w.e.f 25.04.2023 and Shri Pankaj Gupta
as Additional Director in place of Shri Raman Chadha and Smt. Nalini Malhotra respectively at its Board Meeting
held on 09.05.2023 whose office ceased vide resignation letter dated 24.04.2023 who are further regularized as
director at AGM on 15.09.2023
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**Company took note of Change in designation of Shri Kapil Kumar Jain as Additional Director only as his office
as Chairman ceased w.e.f 30.06.2023 on completion of term of two years of Chairmanship by Gail Gas Limited as
per nominating promoter intimation.

***Company vide BPCL communication Letter No. JVC.HNGPL dated 13.06.2023 took note the nomination of
Shri T. V Pandiyan as an Additional Director and Chairman w.e.f 13.06.2023 and 01.07.2023 respectively in place
of Director Shri Pradeep Goyal whose office ceased vide resignation letter dated 10.06.2023 at its 41 Board
Meeting held on 11.07.2023 who was further regularized as Director at AGM on 15.09.2023.

*#x*Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 12.12.2023 took note
the nomination of Shri Yougesh Kumar Gupta as an Additional director w.e.f 12.12.2023 in place of Shri Kapil
Kumar Jain via circulation (CR3/FY 2023-24) on 02.01.2024 whose office ceased vide resignation letter in line with
Gail Gas Letter reference no Gail Gas/Noida/CS dated 12.12.2023.

The change in the composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during
financial year ended March 31, 2024, to the date of signing of the Board’s Report is as
following:

S. | Name of the | Designation DIN/PAN Date of Date of

No | Director appointment cessation

1. | Shri Pankaj Director 10145616 25.04.2023 12.04.2024*
Gupta

2. | Shri Additional 09655483 12.12.2023 12.04.2024*
Yougesh Director
Kumar

3. | Shri  Ajay Additional 08585727 12.04.2024* -
Sinha Director

4. | Shri Additional 10601542 23.04.2024** -
Cherchil Director
Gupta

5. | Shri  Mohit CEO ABAPBO115A 18.04.2022 29.04.2024***
Bhatia

6. | Shri Teekam CEO AFHPS5726D 30.04.2024*** -
Singh

7. | Shri Rajesh CFO ADYPA3231E 18.07.2021 12.06.2024****
Agrawal

8. | Shri Naveen CFO AIRPKO0332Q 12.06.2024**** -
Kumar

*Company vide Gail Gas Limited Communication Letter No. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 12.04.2024 took note the
nomination of Shri Ajay Sinha as an Additional director w.e.f 12.04.2024 in place of Shri Pankaj Gupta and
cessation of office of Additional Director Shri Yougesh Kumar via circulation (CR1/FY 2024-25) on 023.04.2024
whose offices ceased vide resignation letter in line with Gail Gas Letter reference no Gail Gas/Noida/CS dated
12.04.2024.
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**Company vide Gail Gas Limited communication letter no. GAIL Gas/Noida/CS dated 12.04.2024 and DIN
Allotment letter no. AA7620614 dated 23.04.2024 took note of the nomination of Shri Cherchil Gupta as an
Additional director w.e.f date of allotment of DIN i.e 23.04.2024 at its 49" Board Meeting held on 25" April 2024.

***Company vide BPCL letter no. HRD.HQ2.3.DEPU.HNGL dated 26.04.2024 took note of the nomination of Shri

Teekam Singh in place of Shri Mohit Bhatia w.e.f 30.04.2024 at its 50™ Board meeting held on 30.04.2024.

*#x*Company vide Gail Gas letter no. GGL/Noida/HR/8157/2024 dated 10.06.2024 took note of the nomination of
Shri Naveen Kumar in place of Shri Rajesh Agrawal w.e.f 12.06.2024 at its 51% Board meeting held on 13.06.2024.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets at the regular interval to review the Company’s business and discuss its
strategy and plans. During the period year under review, the Board met 10 times viz.,

Sr. No. of Board Meetings Date of Board Meetings
No

1. 39" Board Meeting 17.04.2023

2. 40" Board Meeting 09.05.2023

3. 41% Board Meeting 11.07.2023

4. 42" Board Meeting 26.08.2023

5. 43" Board Meeting 29.08.2023

0. 44" Board Meeting 15.09.2023 & 16.06.2023 (Adjourned)

7. 45" Board Meeting 05.10.2023

8. 46" Board Meeting 28.11.2023

9. 47" Board Meeting 13.02.2024

10. 48" Board Meeting 27.03.2024

Details of attendances are as under:
No. of Board Meetings
Sr. No. Director
Held Attended

1. Shri Raman Chadha 1 1
2. Smt. Nalini Malhotra 1 0
3. Shri Pradeep Goyal 2 2
4. Shri T.V Pandiyan 8 8
5. | Shri Ashish Goyal 10 10
6. Shri Kapil Kumar Jain 7 7
7. Shri Pankaj Gupta 9 9
8. Shri Yougesh Kumar 2 2
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INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARY/ JV/ ASSOCIATE COMPANY

The Company itself is a Joint Venture Company of BPCL and GGL in the ratio of 50:50.
Furthers, The Company has no Subsidiary Company and Associate Companies.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Pursuant to the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, it is necessary to frame a policy and constitute an Internal
Complaints committee (ICC) to redress the complaints received regarding the same during the
year under review, wherever there are 10 or more employees in the Company.

Your company has framed a Policy on Prevention of sexual harassment of women at workplace
in the Financial Year 2023-24 to reaffirm its commitment towards zero tolerance of sexual
harassment and to provide a framework for dealing with sexual harassment incidents. The policy
is in line with the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.

The copy of policy is placed at website with the following link: https:/hngpl.in/wp-
content/uploads/2023/1 1/HNGPL _-Approved POSH-Policy.pdf

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 with respect to FY 2023-24.

(a) | Number of complaints pending at the beginning of financial year | NIL
(b) | Number of complaints filed during the financial year NIL
(c) | Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year NIL
(d) | Number of complaints pending at the end of the Financial Year NIL

INTERNAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies,
safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information.

There are adequate controls relating to strategic, operational, environmental, and quality related
aspects too.

While these controls have been effective throughout the year, these are reviewed on a periodic
basis for any changes/ modifications to align to business needs.

CEO/CFO certification in this regard is attached as Annexure- I1I.
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RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has put in place the procedure for risk assessment and its minimization by way of
developing comprehensive enterprise risk management framework including the risk
management policy in line with the business activities of the company during the Financial Year
2023-24.

The Copy of the policy is placed at website with the following link: https://hngpl.in/wp-
content/uploads/2023/10/HNGPL,_Approved Risk-Management-Policy 11.10.23.pdf

Our Risk Management Policy is designed to manage strategic, operational, sustainability,
governance, among other risks associated with our business operations and growth objectives.
We consider all the risks holistically, keeping in mind the dynamic multi-faceted impact of a
single risk on other aspects of our business, and monitor and control such risks through various
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs).

To periodically review and monitor the identified risks, and mitigation measures, HNGPL’s Risk
Management Process is guided by a dedicated Board and Corporate-level Risk Management
Committee involving key managers of HNGPL. The committee meets once in half year or on
need-basis and reviews KPIs and major business risks, providing corrective measures to improve
business efficiency. Our risk management system is strong enough to guarantee accurate risk
identification and is adaptable enough to support dispersed risk management procedures.

We have a designated Chief Risk Officer for the company entrusted with the responsibility to
monitor, manage and report all the identified risks.

HNGPL’s RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION STRUCTURE:

Board of Directors

Corporate level Risk
Management Committee

CRO

Unit Risk Owner
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with disclosures pertaining to any
fraud or suspected fraud involving employees of HNGPL. The policy facilitates safe and secure
ways to make these disclosures and safeguards the rights and interests of the employees
disclosing any fraudulent activities. To ensure due diligence the company has constituted an
Investigation Committee to investigate such disclosures.

The company vigilance mechanism is represented by one of its promoters, Gail Gas Limited.

CVO Shri Sandeep Sarkar has been nominated as CVO at HNGPL.

The Copy of the policy is placed at website with the following link: https://hngpl.in/wp-
content/uploads/2023/10/HNGPL_-Approved Whistle-Blower-Policy 11.10.23.pdf

A summary of vigilance cases during the year 2023-24 is as under:

Compliant/Detailed | Opening Received Total Disposed of Closing
Investigations Balance (as on | during the during the Balance as on
01.04.2023) year year 31.03.2024

(Under
Investigation)

Complaints 00 00 00 00 00

Detailed 00 00 00 00 00

Investigation

VIGIL AWARENESS

In pursuance of the directions of Central Vigilance Commission, Vigilance Awareness Week
(VAW) was observed in HNGPL from 31st October, 2023 to 6th November, 2023 with the
theme “Corruption free India for a developed nation; Further, preventive vigilance measures cum
housekeeping activities were also taken up as a 3 month’s campaign from 16th August, 2023 to
15th November, 2023 as a precursor to VAW-2023. Various activities like essay competition,
quiz competition, slogan competition, etc. were organized within and outside HNGPL in which
more than 41 no. of employees/contract employees participated.

SECRETARIAL STANDARD

The Management has observed and ensured all possible compliance of applicable Secretarial
Standards SS-1- on Meetings of Board and SS-2 on Annual General Meeting.
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES
UNDER SECTION 186

The Company has not granted any loan, guarantee, or made any investments during the year
ended 31% March 2023 under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in Form
MGT-9 is annexed as a part of this Report as Annexure -IV.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no materially significant related party transactions entered into during the year by
your Company. All the related party transactions during the year were entered in the ordinary
course of business and on arm’s length basis. Particulars of contract or arrangement with related
parties is Annexed herewith in Form AOC-2 as Annexure-V in terms of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Material Changes and Commitment, If Any, Affecting the Financial Position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to
which the Financial Statement related and the date of report

The paid-up share capital has increased to Rs 87.16 Crore from Rs. 44.40 Crore on 17.04.2023.

There are no other material changes and commitments in the business operations of the Company
from the financial year ending March 31%, 2024, to the date of signing of the Board’s Report as
above.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

The Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo
pursuant to provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Account) Rules, 2014:

A. Conservation of Energy:
While continuing to believe in philosophy of Energy saved is Energy produced, adequate
measures commensurate with the business operations have been taken to reduce and conserve

the energy consumption by utilizing energy efficient equipment whenever required and has
also planning to use alternate renewable sources.
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B. Technology Absorption:

Research and Development (R&D): Nil
Technology absorption, adoption and innovation: Nil

C. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange Earnings: Nil
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Nil

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company is not falling under the criteria mentioned in Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules made thereunder for the Financial Year 2023-24, therefore provisions of CSR is
not applicable on the company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act, Directors of your
Company state and confirm that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 2023-24, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same.

b. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the
Company for year ended on that date;

c. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing fraud and other irregularities.

d. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
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f. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

As per Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder, private companies are not required to comply
with the provisions of section 197 of the companies act, 2013. Therefore, such particulars have
not been included as part of the Board’s Report.

The employees at your company are the employees of Gail Gas Limited, BPCL and HNGPL.
Hence, HR initiatives undertaken by promoters’ companies Gail Gas Limited, BPCL and
HNGPL are implemented.

Total number of employees in your company including on deputation with across various
categories as per records on 31.03.2024 is as below:

No. of Employees as on 31.03.2024
Total On Deputation Permanent FTFT
16 4 2 10

DISCLOSURES ABOUT ACCOUNTING SOFTWARE FOR MAINTAINING ITS
BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the company used Tally software to maintain its books of
accounts. The accounting software have the following features:

(a) Able to record the audit trail of each and every transaction,

(b) Able to create and edit log of each change made in books of account along with the date
when such changes were made

(c) Able to ensure that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

(d) Able to audit by the statutory auditor to trace every step of the financial data of a particular
transaction right from the general ledger to its source document with the help of the audit trail.

DISCLOSURE OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN VALUATION AMOUNT ON ONE TIME
SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION WHILE AVAILING LOANS FROM BANKS AND
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year under review, there is no one time settlement of Loan taken from any Bank.

DISCLOSURE OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review, there is no application made or proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE

This report may contain certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of applicable
laws and regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the statements contained in this
document due to various risks and uncertainties. The Company does not undertake to update
these statements.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Board of Directors wish to place on record sincere thanks and gratitude to the Government
of Uttarakhand, Government of India, its bankers, institutions, suppliers and appreciation for the
commitment, dedication and hard work done by the employees of the Company. The Directors
also wish to express their heartfelt gratitude to the stakeholders for their continued support to the

company.
Date: 24.07.2024 For and on behalf of
Place: Noida Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

Digitally signed

pandlya by pandiyan tv AJay

Date: 2024.08.13 ;
ntv 20:11:40 +05'30' Sinha
T.V Pandiyan Ajay Sinha
Chairman Director

DIN: 09581136 DIN: 08585727
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HEMANT ARORA & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants
- gik 354-B8 30, ol Lines

Date: 87 April, 2024 Roorkae 24 TEET Uttarakhand India
T+81 1332 273343 | 277272
M + §1 9760407774 | 9837039666

Ref: 2023-24/ 006 E hamantaco@Egmail com
W hemantarmra.m

To,

The Board of Directors,

HARIDWAR NATURAL GAS PRIVATE LIMITED
COCO-CMG Station, Khasra No. 569-570,
Mear Govind Garden, Jawalapur,

Haridwar 249 404, Uttrakhand.

Subject: Intimation of Fraud incident surfaced from Investigation Report from M/s.
Demlani & Associates (Chartered Accountants), Haridwar

Regarding: Section 143{12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended

Dear Sirf Madam,

Please take note that recently a case of Fraud with respect to your Company "HARIDWAR
NATLIRAL GAS PRIVATE UMITED" has been noticed out under a 3 party contract of DPNG
Billing involving prima facia of the outsourced Billing Manager awarded to M/s. Justin Global
Services for “Hiring for carrying Meter Reading, Bill Generation, Bill Distribution, Customer
Relationship Management (CRM) activities Including revenue recovery for DPNG,
Commercial and Industrial Customers in  Haridwar GA" vide letter ref no.:
HNGPL/FEA/FRAUD CASES01/23-24 datad 27" March, 2024 and received the Investigation
Report on the same matter by M/s. Demlanl & Associates, Chartered Accountants dated 3
April, 2024, received through e-mail dated 6™ April, 2024.

Please note that this information is with respect to the provisions of section 143(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
as amended, in the aforementioned case of fraud shall be noted: -

a}  Nature of Fraud with description: -

@ Management had observed that there was mismatch in the DPNG debtors
outstanding between ERP-Billing Software and Tally-Financial Accounting
package.

] Management got suspicious and started Reconciliation of POS, Cheque and
Cinline Payments in ERP with Tally.

i Fake PO5 entries detected by management during reconclliation.

o Billing Manager- Mr Sharat Verma (i.e. M/s. Justin Global Services) started to
deposit the misappropriated cash via POS.

o Approval rights of the Billing Manager in ERP withdrawn on 31* January, 2024,

& CEQ organised a meeting with Billng Manager where he accepted the

accusations of misappropriation.
Investigation team got appointed on 19" March, 2024,
6 payment receipt books seized from the custody of Billing Department

Dehradun OMice: 1, Tyagl Read, Dehradun 248001 India Ted - +91 135 2626795 Fax ' +91 135637755
DelhijNCR) Office | #1117-1119, OLF Galleria Tower, 111h Floor DLF Phase IV, Gurgacn 122002 ndia Tel | +31 124 257068P age R 20of5 195
Mumbal Office: B-304 New India Chambers, Off Mahakak Andheri East Murnbai 400093 India Tel: +81 22 2561 Yaa2



b)

L2 R

taken from Mr Sharat Verma- Ex Billing Manager.

Complete ERP rights of Billing Manager withdrawn on 22" March, 2024.
Billing manager removed from his position on 227 March, 2024.
Post investigation, an affidavit dated 4" April 24 of the misappropriation was

Approximate amount involved:- As per the Investigation Report, the total amount
misappropriated approximately Rs. 6,59,883/-. The Billing Manager confessad that
approximately an amount of Rs. 4,50,852/- collected by him in cash from DPNG
customers was not deposited and against respective BP numbers in ERP. These cash
were retained by the Billing Manager for his personal gains. On strongly taking up the
matter By HNGPL Management, partial amount deposited by Billing Manager and Rs,

66,384/- is pending to be recovered from customers/ him,

Details of total misappropriated amount based on the records made available for FY

23-24 up to 23™ March 24:

Particulars Amount
Total Cash realised as per the records made available (April 23- Jan 5,21,042.00
24)
Less:
Amount received and updated in ERP on and before 06/02/2024 2,31,904.,00
(Date of Reversal of Fake POS entries) -
Met Cash Amount 2,89,138.00
Add: A
Cash received as accepted by Billing Manager 4,50,892.00
Fake entry of payment received - later on reversed in ERP by Billing 4,22,228.00
Manager by taking Management Approval (Rs 389628+6746+25854)
Fake entries of payment recelved through POS - updated in ERP by 8.836.00
Billing Manager - sug‘_f_gged by Investigation Team
Fake entries of payment received against cheques but not cleared in 38,148.00
Bank - updated in ERP by Billing Manager
Total 12,09,242.00
| Less: "
Duplicate Entries or wrong reversals against various BPs 5,49 .355.00
Total amount Misappropriated | 65,59,883.00
Amount entered by billing manager in ERP through POS time to time
and further below amount was deposited in HNGPL
Account by Billing Manager:
Rs. 1,40,000/- on 16/03/2024
Rs. 55,000/- on 19/03/2024
Rs. 1,00,000/- on 20/03,/2024
Rs. 84,591/- on 23/03/2024
Rs. 60,600/- on 01/04/2024
Total amount deposited Rs. 4,40,191/
Amount entered through POS time to time Rs. 1,532,308/ 5,93,499.00
Amount to be recovered from customers/Billing Manager 66,384.00
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Besides above, based on the provisional accounts as on 31" March 24, there is a
variance in Sundry Debtors of DPNG outstanding as per Tally and as per ERP of Rs.
17.96,755/- (higher in Tally). Out of this, amounting to Rs. 5,22,639/- was received on
1 April, 2024 in bank against outstanding of 317 March 24. Therefore, balance of Rs.
12,74,116/- is still un-reconciled amount in ERP.

c]  Parties involved: - Mr Sharat Verma- Billing Manager and
M/s. Justin Global Services, Delhi

Please find attached letter of intimation and Report on Investigation for your ready
reference,

Kindiy acknowledge the same. Please do the needful.

Warm Regards,
For M/s Hemant Arora & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No. 002141C/C4000

s

CA. Prabhat Kumar Rastogi
Partner
M. No. 403577

Date: 08.04.2024
Place: Roorkee

Encl: Afa
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUTOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION H3(6Hb) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2003 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF HARIDWAR NATURAL GAS PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

I'he preparation of financial statements of Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the finuncial reporting framework prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company.
The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptrodler and Auditor General of India onder section
| 395} of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section
143 of the Act based on independent aodit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under section 1430100 of the Act. This is stated 1o have been done by them wvide their
Audit Report dated 25 April 2024,

L on behall of the Comptroller and Aoditor General ol India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited for the
vear ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act, This supplementary audit has
been carried out independently without access 1o the working papers of the statutory auditor and
is limited primarily 1o inguiries of the siatutory avditor and company personnel and a selective

examination of some of the accounting records,

O the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come o my kKnowledge
which would give rise 10 any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditor’s report under

sechion [4306Wh) ol the Act.

For and on hehalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

b

Place: New Dcil::i %, .J";hliadinli oy ]
Date: 2 /=71 24 . Mrector General of Audit (Energy )
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I"HNG
Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(W of Bhara! Pelrmisumn & GANL Gas)

CED anmi CFO Certification

We, Mr Mobit Bhatin, Chief Executive Officer and Hajesh Agrawal, Chief Financial
(Mficer of Harldwar Najral Gas Pvi L1¢ o the besi al sur knewledge and beligf certify that:

I We have reviewed the financial stiements and the cush Mo sttement fir the year
ending March 31, 2024 and that t; the best of our knowledge and belief

*  These statements do nol contain vy materially untrue satement o omit sy material
Il OF contaln statement (kg migh be misleading:

=  These statemnenis iogether present . true and fuir view of the Company’s sffaire and are
m camplance with existing Accou iting Standards, spplicable lnws and regalathons

#.d

There are, 10 the best of our  knowledge and belief no tranzactions ¢ntered by the
Coimpany during the year which a - fraudulent, Hegal or violwtion of the Company's
Code of Conduct,

3. We pccept respansibility for essahl hing dind maintadning imemal control for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control SVSIEms
of the company perairing 0 fina il reporting and have disclosed 1o the auditons,
defictencies in the design or aperstic 1 of internal controls. ifany, ol which we are awgre
ndl steps teiosn or propose to take o rectify these deliclencies

e

We have indicated 1o the & uditors

* Sighilicant changes, in inten al control over Mnancial reporting during the vesr
ended 31" March 2024 '

= Significant changes in scconming policies during the year ending March 31,
2024 and that the same haoe been disclosed in the nofes i e financial
statements; wsd -

* Inmances of significant frad of which we hove become aware and the
mvalvement thereun, {7 any. of the management or an employes having a
signilicant role in the cor sany’s intermal control svilem over financial
reperting. In respect of a case 1f raud Misappropriation done in DPNG Billing
by Billing Manager. hired the ugh the sontractor, the intimation w given vide
lener dated 27™ March 24 ano the Investigtion report shared op & April 202

B0 SUNEUECr mud ifors \ ! [
{Hajesh y { Mokt Bhatia)
Chiel Fiftancinl Officer Chief Exccutive Officer

Place, Hursdwar
Drated: 15 April, 2024

Corpsxrace i r.unu-r_--‘-hmlpur Moadr, Hurbitsmr-2459400 (11K ]
El Hip,-1 2%, Mew Handwar Colony, Beh nd Matrichaya M!‘Ill:ﬂl :
o I:-:I.Dﬂn Harsdwar Natural (az Prive e Limited, COCO-CNG Station, Khazra Mo, 589570,
Mear Goend Garden: fao alapur, Hardwar- 249464 (LK) =
Emall 1 palei®lingpe co.in Phone v 01334-220333, l'l'-:rh.:ltt._ e ngmbir,
CIN: L4D300URIDIAFTLO0T 104 GETIN/UIN; 05AADCHATARNL 20
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I.

I1.

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2024

Annexure-1V

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN

U40300UR2016PTC0O07004

ii. Registration Date

20/04/2016

iii. Name of the Company

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

iv. Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by Shares

V. Class of company Private Company

Vi. Address of the Registered office and contact Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd Landhora,
Details Roorkee, Haridwar-247667

Vii. Whether listed company No

viii. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar | Not Applicable

and Transfer Agent, if any

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated: -
S. |IName and Description of main[NIC Code of the Product/ | % to total turnover of the
No. . service company
products / services
1 [ Electricity, Gas, Steam and Hot water| 40 100

Supply
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I11. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE
COMPANIES: Not Applicable
Sr. Name And Address Of CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
No. | The Company Subsidiar/ shares held
Associate Section
IVv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Break up as percentage of

Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share-Holding

Category No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year|%
the year (As on 01-April 2023) (As on 31-March-2024) Chang
e
during
the
year
De Physical Total % of |Dem | Physical Total % off
mat | (in Nos.) (InAmount) | 1otal |at (in (In Amount) | 1otal
Shares Nos.) Shares
A. Promoter
1) Indian
a) Individual/ | - - - - - - - - .
HUF
b) Central Govt| - - - - - - - - -
c) State Govt(s)| - - - - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp.| - 2,22,00,000 | 2,22,000,000 | 50 - 4,35,80,000| 43,58,00,000| 50 [No
I) Gai Change
| Gas
Limite
d
Il)Bharat 2,22,00,000( 2,22,000,000 | 50 4,35,80,000( 43,58,00,000| 50 No
Petroleum Change
Corporation
Limited
e) Any Other
- 4,44,00,000 | 4,44,000,000 | 100 - 8,71,60,000(87,16,00,000( 100 |No
Sub- change
total(A)(1):-
2) Foreign NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
f) NRIs- - - - - - - N _ -
Individuals
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g) Other- - - - - - - - - -
Individuals

h)Bodies
Corp.

i) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - .

j) Any Other.... | - - - - - - - - -

- 4,44,00,000 |4,44,000,000 100 - 8,71,60,000 (87,16,00,000 | 100 No
chan
ge

Sub-total (A)

B. Public N NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual - - - - - - - - -
Funds

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

c) Central Govt| - - - - - - - - -

d) State - - - - - - - - -
Govt(s)
e) Venture - - - - - - - - -
Capital
Funds
f) Insurance - - - - - - - - .
Companies

g) Flis - - - - - - - - R

h) Foreign - - - - - - - - -
Venture
Capital
Funds

i) Others - - - - - - - - .
(specify)

Sub-total (B)(1)

2. Non N NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
Institutions

a) BodiesCorp.| - - - - - - - - -
() Indian
(i) Overseas
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b) Individuals | - - - - - - . B _
(@) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal
capital p to
Rs. 1 lakh

(i) Individua
I
shareholders
holding
nominalshare
capital in
excess of Rs
11dh

c) Others - - - - - - - - -
(Specify)

Sub-total (B)(2)

Total

Publi
c
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1) +
(B)(2)

C. Shares held | - - - - - - - - -
by Custodian

forGDRs &

ADRs

Grand Total - 4,44,00,000 4,44,000,000 100 5 8,71,60,000 | 87,16,00,000 100 No
Chan

(A+B+C) ge

ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of te Shareholding at the end of the
No Name year (01-April-2023) Year (31-March 2024)
No. of % of %of Shares No. of % of %of Shares % change
Shares total Pledged/ Shares total Pledged/ in
Shares |encumbered Share |encumbered shareholding
of te to total s of |tototalshares during the
comp shares the year
any comp
any
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GAIL GAS
LIMITED

4,35,80,000

50 -

4,35,80,000

50 -

No Change

BHARAT
PETROLEUM
CORPORATION
LIMITED

4,35,80,000

50 -

4,35,80,000

50 -

No Change

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the
no the year (01-April-2023) Year (31-March-2024)

No. of shares % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of shares of
thecompany the

company

1. |GAIL GAS LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 2,22,00,000 50.00% - -

At the end of year - - 4,35,80,000 50.00%
2. |BHARAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 2,22,00,000 50.00% - -

At the end of year - - 4,35,80,000 50.00%

TOTAL 4,44,00,000 100 8,71,60,000 100

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NOT APPLICABLE

Sl.
No

For each of the Top |[Date

10 shareholders

Reason

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares

% of total
shares

No. of shares

% of
total
shares

At the beginning of
the year

Page 32 of 122



Date wise Increase/
Decrease in
Promoters
shareholding during
the
year specifying the
reasons for
increase/decrease
(e.g.

allotment
/transfer/

bonus/

sweat equities):

At the end of the
year

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NOT APPLICABLE

SN

Shareholding of
each Directors
andeach
Managerial
Personnel

Key

Date

Reason

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No. of
Shares

% of total
shares

No. of shares

% of total
shares

At the beginning of
the year

Date wise Increase/
Decrease in
Promoters
shareholding during
the
year specifying the
reasons for
increase/decrease
(e.g.

allotment
/transfer/

bonus/
sweat equities):

At the end of the
year

V.

INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:(Rs in Lacs

Secured
Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured

Loans

Deposits

Total

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning d the

financial year

i) Principal Amount

11286.91

11286.91
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ii) Interest due but not paid

63.40 - - 63.40
iii)Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii-+iii) 11350.31 - - 11350.31
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
- Addition - - - i
- Reduction /EIR Adjustments -1677.89 - - -1677.89
Net Change -1677.89 - - -1677.89

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

9608.31 - - 9608.31
i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
64.11 - - 64.11
iii) Interest accrued but notdue
9672.42 = = 9672.42

Total (i+ii+iii)

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIALPERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing, Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NOT
APPLICABLE

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration Total Amount

1. Gross salary NA NA

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act,1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act,1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax

Act, 1961
2. Stock Option NA NA
3. Sweat Equity NA NA
4. Commission NA NA

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

5. Others, please specify NA NA
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6. Total (A) NA NA

Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors: NOT _APPLICABLE

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

Independent Directors NA NA NA NA NA

- Fee for attending
boardcommittee
meetings.

- Commission

- Others, please specify
Total (1) NA NA NA NA NA

Other Non-Executive Directors NA NA NA NA NA

- Fee for attending
boardcommittee
meetings.

- Commission

- Others, please specify

Total (2) NA NA NA NA NA
Total (B)=(1+2) NA NA NA NA NA
Total Managerial Remuneration NA NA NA NA NA
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NA NA NA NA NA

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD /Manager/WTD
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sl.no. Particulars
Designation CEO CFO Company Total
Secretary
Name Shri Mohit Shri Rajesh Sushri Shikha
Bhatia Agrawal
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1. Gross salary 88.03 111.19 (a) 9.08 199.22
a) Salary as per
provisions
contained in
section 17(1) of]
the Income-tax
Act,1961
b) Value off (b) NIL
perquisites u/s
17(2)Income- tax
Act,1961
c¢)Profits in lieu (CNIL
of Salary under
section 17(3)
Income-tax
Act, 1961
2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4. Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit
-Others, specify...
5. Others, please NIL NIL NIL NIL
specify
6. Total 88.03 111.19 9.08 199.22

e The remuneration to all the employees is as per the debit note received from promoters’ companies

and debit entry in accounting software.

VIIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority [RD Appeal
the description Made.
companies Punishment /NCLT/Court] e caEs)
Act

/Compounding fees
imposed
A. Company
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding| NA NA NA NA NA

B. Directors
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Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding| NA NA NA NA NA
C. Other Officers in Default
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Compounding| NA NA NA NA NA
Date: 24.07.2024 For and on behalf of

Place: Noida

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

Digitally signed by

pa nd Iya n pandiyan tv

tv

Date: 2024.08.13
20:12:31 +05'30"

T.V Pandiyan
Chairman
DIN: 09581136

Ajay
Sinha
Ajay Sinha

Director
DIN: 08585727
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Annexure-V

Particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule §(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the financial year
2022-23, which was not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis
SL. No. Particulars Details
1. Name (s) of the related party and Gail Gas Limited
Nature of relationship Venture/ Promoter Company
Nature of (a) Agreement between Gail Gas Limited
(a) contracts/arrangements/transaction and Haridwar Natural Gas Private

Limited for Compression & Associated
Services of Natural Gas for Dehradun
(GA).
(b) JV Agreement between Gail Gas
Limited and HNGPL for employees on
deputation remuneration and other
expenses.
(c¢) Loanagreement of Rs.15 Crore with an
option to convert into equity
Duration of the (a) The agreement is originally executed on
contracts/arrangements/transaction 11.06.2020 valid till 30 June 2022 and
further extended upto 30™ June 2023
and then further extended upto 30" June
2024.

(b) As mutually agreed,

(c) The agreement is entered on 25.03.2021
valid up to 5 years i.e., till 25.03.2026

Salient terms of the contracts or | (a) The Company and Gail Gas Dehradun
arrangements or transaction including have a job work contract, wherein the
the value, if any Company is converting the Natural Gas
in Compressed Natural Gas.

Transaction during FY 2023-24 against
job work income is Rs. 700.53 Lakhs

(b) Expenses towards reimbursement of
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(©)

employee remuneration on deputation is
Rs. 149.75 Lakhs

Inter-corporate loan at interest @7.45%
p.a at par with HDFC MCLR + 25bps
refundable in 16 quarterly instalments
w.e.f June 2022 with an option to
convert into equity. (in FY 2023-24
interest @9.20% p.a)

Transaction amount: Interest paid on
Inter Corporate Loan is Rs. 89.35 Lakhs
& Repayment of Intercorporate Loan is
Rs. 375.00 Lakhs.

Date(s) of approval by the Board

(2)

(b)
(c)

Not Applicable since the contract was
entered on arm length basis.

NA

Board approved Inter-Corporate loan on
18" February 2021 and the agreement
was entered on arm length basis at
interest (@7.45% p.a at par with HDFC
MCLR Rate plus 25bps refundable in 16
quarterly installments.

Amount paid as advances, if any NA
SL. No. Particulars Details
22 Name (s) of the related party Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited
Venture/ Promoter Company
Nature of Relationship
Nature of (a) CNG Agreement between Bharat
contracts/arrangements/transaction Petroleum Corporation Limited and
Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited
(b) JV Agreement between BPCL and
HNGPL for employees on deputation
remuneration and other expenses.
(¢) Loanagreement of Rs.15 Crore with an
option to convert into equity.
Duration of the | (a) The agreement is originally executed

contracts/arrangements/transaction

(b)
(©)

on 26th March 2019 for a period of 5
years. After expiration of 5 years,
contract is freshly executed on 23
March 2024 for period of next 5 years
i.e upto 26" March 2029.

As mutually agreed,.

The 19.03.2021 valid upto 5 years i.e
19.03.2026

Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including
the value, if any

(a)

As per the CNG Agreement the
Company is using the Retail Outlet
Facility of BPCL for the sale of CNG.
Further, other transactions like,
Reimbursement of Employee
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Remuneration, Expense paid against
Facility Charges.

Transaction Value against Sale of CNG
is Rs. 2682.75 lakhs and against
Facility charges is Rs.25.61 Lakhs.

(b) Expenses towards reimbursement of
employee remuneration on deputation
is Rs. 184.61 Lakhs

(c) Inter-corporate loan at interest @7.45%
p.a at par with HDFC MCLR + 25bps,
refundable in 16 quarterly instalments
w.e.f June 2022 with an option to
convert into equity (in FY 2023-24
interest @9.20% p.a)

Transaction amount: Interest paid on
Inter Corporate Loan is Rs. 89.30
Lakhs and Repayment of
Intercorporate Loan is Rs. 375.00
Lakhs.

Date of approval by the Board

(a) Not applicable since the contract was
entered into on an arm length basis.

(b) NA

(¢) Board approved Inter-Corporate loan
on 18" February 2021 and the
agreement was entered on arm length
basis at interest (@7.45% p.a at par with
HDFC MCLR + 25bps refundable in
16 quarterly installments.

Amount paid as advances, if any NA
Name (s) of the related party Gail (India) Limited
Associate Company/Holding of Gail Gas
Nature of Relationship Limited
Nature of (a) Agreement between Gail India Limited

contracts/arrangements/transaction

and Haridwar Natural Gas Private
Limited for purchase of APM & Non-
APM Natural Gas.

(b) Agreement between Gail India Limited
and HNGPL for HH GSA

(¢) Agreement between Gail India Limited
and HNGPL for JC GSA

(d) Agreement between Gail India limited
and HNGPL for RLNG-HH-2

(e) Agreement between Gail India Limited
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and HNGPL for Hooking up of
Shipper’s Facilities.

(f) Other transactions such as supervision
charges, gas loss recovery and
permission charges

Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/transaction

(a) The agreement is executed on
16.05.2022 and valid till 06.07.2022
and further renewed till 06.07.2026.

(b) The agreement is executed on
16.10.2021 valid till 15.10.2024.

(c) The agreement is executed on
01.01.2022 and valid till 31.12.2026.

(d) The agreement is executed on
30.06.2023 valid till 30.06.2028.

(¢) The agreement is executed on
21.11.2016 for 10 years extendable
further.

(f) Real-time transactions

Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transaction including
the value, if any

(a) The Company agreed to purchase Gas
from Gail India Limited as mutually
agreed agreement (a), (b), (c) and (d)
above:

Transaction amount: Rs. 6554.66 Lakhs
towards purchase of goods and material.

(b) Including in (a) above

(¢) Including in (a) above

(d) Including in (a) above

(e) Expenses on account of hooking-up
Maintenance facilities Rs.19.09 Lakhs.

(f) Other transactions such as Supervision
Charges against pipeline damage is
Rs.8.57 Lakhs (including GST), Gas
loss recovery is Rs.0.68 Lakhs
received from GAIL and permission
charges paid by HNGPL is Rs. 1.86
Lakhs.

Date of approval by the Board

Not Applicable since the contract was
entered into on arm length basis.

Amount paid as advances, if any

NA

Name (s) of the related party

Nature of Relationship

Mr. Mohit Bhatia (CEO)

Mr. Rajesh Agrawal (CFO)

Ms. Shikha (CS)

Mr. Ashok Chaudhary (Former CEO)

Key Managerial Personnel
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Remuneration Rs. 88.03
Rs. 111.19
Rs.9.08
Rs.16.13
Date: 24.07.2024 For and on behalf of
Place: Noida H:gidW‘:}Ir Naturgl Gas Private Limited
. igitally signe
pandlya bygpan()dliygntv i
ntv Date: 2024.08.13 Ajay Sinha:
20:13:01 +05'30' :
T.V Pandiyan Ajay Sinha
Chairman Director
DIN: 09581136 DIN: 08585727
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Haridwar Natural Gas Privats Umitad
LA IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Patroleum Corporation Limited)
Raglstered Office : COCO-CHEG Btation, Khasra No, 563-570, Near Govind Garden, Jwalapar, Haridwar, Uttarakhand-3249404
STATEMENT OF PROFIT B LOSS FOR YEAR ENDING AS ON 3151 MARCH 014
(% in Lakh) |
Figures for the Year ended Figures far the Yenr cnded
Rarticulas WL, | i o Sak Mty 034 25 on 31st March 2023
L.| Revenue from operations 13 L 9A%.17 G.174.16
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1L Total Income [1+11) ILIS0&q | ENIVE )
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Fther oxpinses 1B E _1.eA0.14 i,3321.00
Total Expenses (IV) 15, 357.49 B, 785,76
Frofit/{Loss) befare Exceptional Ttarms and fax [III=
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(2] Diluted earming per shaeg of Be 10 aath o) 068 026
The accomipanying notes 1 to 31 are integral part of these financial statements.
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HArdwar Hatural Eng Privais Limeted
{A J¥ of GAIL Ges Limited ang Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited )
Ruglsiered Office | COCO-CNG Statlon, Khasra Mo, 569-570, Mear Govind Gardern, Jwalapur, Harldwar, UWttaraihared- 245404
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDIMG AS ON 31st MARCH Z022
QurEs B Yoar uras fir ear
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FariPanr Hakwural Bas Privets Toilied
(8 IW of GATL Gan Limibed sed Ssrst Petveldum Carporaties Limited)
n-mmwmmummlmrmmmlm AS O J1gt HARCH 7024
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HARIDWAR NATURAL GAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(AJV ol GAIL GAS LIMITED & RHARAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITE (H]
REGD. OFFICE: COCD-CNG Station, Khasra No, 569-570, Near Govind Garden,
Jwalapur, Haridwar, Uttarakhand-249404

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31" Ma rch, 2024

1. Corporate in [ormation

Haridwar Natwral Gas Private Limited (“HNGPL™} is a company domiciled in India with
registered office at Jwalapur, Haridwar in Littarak hand.

HNGPL is & Joint Venture Company of GAIL Gas Limitad (A wholly owned subsidiary of Gail
(India) Limited) and Bharat Petroleumn Corporation Limited, It was incorporated on April 20,
2016 for the smooth implementation of ity Gas Distribution (CGD) projects bascd on the Joint
Venture Agreement of the Consorjum, The Consortium, subsequently the Joini Venture
Company namely Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited (HNGPL) has heen authorized by
Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRE) for implementing City Gas Distribution
Network in the Geographical Arca of Haridwar District,

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules. 2016,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis excepl for certain financial
assets and liabilities which have been measured at fulr value or revalued amount, The fact is
disclosed in the relevant accounting policy.

The financial statements are presenied in Indian Rupees (*INR") and the values are rounded to the
nearest Lakhs, excepl otherwise indicated.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1 Property, plant and equipment

(i} Tangible Assets

Property, plani and equipment are stated at original cost net of tax / duty credit availed, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. All costs relating 1o
acquisition of Tangible assets 1il| commissioning of such assets are capitalized

Page 50 of 123




When significant pans of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company derecognizes the replaced part, and recognizes the new part with itz own
associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly.

Property, plant and equipment are eliminated from financial statement, cither on disposal or
when retired from active use. Relatad cost and accumulated depreciation are climinated from
financial statement. Further, [osses arising in case retirement of property, plant and equipment
and gains or losses arising from disposal of property. plant and equipment are recognized in the
staterment of profit and loss in the vear of nccurmence.

The amount is wransferred into the PPE from Capital WIP, whenever asset is ready Tor its
intended use on the basis of Project Manager's Statement of “completed works for
capitalisation™.

Depreciation on tangible PPE is provided in accordance with the manner and useful life (after
retaining the estimated residual value of up o 3%) as is specified in Schedule I of the

Companies Act, 2013, on Straight Line Method (SLM) on pro-rata basis (Monthly pro-rata for
boughi out assets),

During the Current Financial Year, Company has made the Engine Overhaul for its two
compressors installed at CNG Stations. The Actual Cost incurred s Capitalised and will be
depreciated over the subsequent 4 vears on the basis of Centification by Project Manager,
Whereas the Engine Overhaul Cast cemponent of the Compressors Capitalised in earlier years
were estimated and the WDV of those components were written off in the current financial vear
as shown in Note No. 28 to the Financial Statements.

ltems of Property, Plant and Equipment costing nol more than Rs.S,000/- {Rs. Five Thousand
only) are depreciated at 100 percent in the yeor of acquisition,

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation/amontization are reviewed
at each reporting period and adjusted prospectively, iff appropriate.

Lseful life as specified in Schedule Il is as follows:

Particulars Useful life as per Schedule 1 of the
| Companies Act, 2013 (In Years)
0l and gas assels (including welis), processing plam 25
and facilities, Storage tanks and relaed equipment _
Compressor’s Engine Overhauls B | g =)
Pipelines - 3t
Office Fquipment's 3 -
Building ' ' ) 30 e
Temporary Structure 3 |
_Storage Container = o 20
Fumniture and Fixiures 10
 Computers and data processing units:
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() Servers and networks ="y f
(i) End user devices, such as, deskiops, laptops,

(Y]

(ii) Capital Work in Progress

Capital work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation /
under development including construction stores. Material in TransivVEquipment/Services, ele,
received ot site for use in the projects as at the balance shest date.

All revenue expenses incurred dunng construction period, which are exclusively ansibutnble w
acquisition/construction of PPE, are capitalized ot the time of commissioning of such assets,

3.2 Intangible Assers

Intangible assets acquired separmicly are messured on initial recomnition at cost, Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any aceumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses,

Intangible assets with finite lives (i.e., software. licenses and website) are amortized over the
usefal economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (principally comprise those ‘right of wse’ for which
there is no foreseeable limit to the period aver which they are expected to generate net cash
Nlows given the fact that these tights can be used even afier the life of respective pipelines) arc
nat amortized, but are tested for impaimment annually, either indvidually or a1 the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite fife is reviewed anmumlly o determine
whether the indefinite life continues to he suppertable. 7 not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Ciains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are necoghized in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecaognized.

During the Current Financial Year, Company has recognised Right of Use Asset arising from
the payment of Hooking up Charges which would be amortised over the period of 325 Years,
These Hooking up Charges were previously part of Prepaid Expenses and were transierred to
Profit and Loss an Equated Quarterly Instalments. The Change in classification will not have
any impact on Profit and Loss Statement of the Company,

&3 Impairment of assets

Al each balance sheet date, the company assesses whether there s any indication that any
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life may be impaired, If any such
impainment exists, the recoverable aMOUNL oF an assel is estimated to determine the extent of
impaimment, if any.
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.4 Inventories

al Stock of gas in pipeline is valued at cost on First in first out (FIFQ) basis or net realizable
value whichever is lower.

hi Raw materials and finished products are valued at eost or net realizahle value, whichever is
lwver,

¢) Stock in process iz valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. It is valued at

cost where the finished products in which these are to be incorporated are expected to he sold
at or above cost.

d) Stores and spares and other material for use in pricluction of inventories are valued gt
weighted average cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. It is valued a weighted
average cost where the finished products in which they will he incorpormad are expected to
be s0ld atior above cost.

e} Surplusiobsolete stores and spares are valued at cost or nel realizable value, whichever ic
lower,

1) Surplusiobsolete capital stores. other than held for use in construction of capital assets, are
valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing them 1o their existing location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories,
cost includes an appropriate share of production everheads based on normal operating capacity,

Stores & Spares which meet the definition of property plant and equipment and satisfy the
recognition criteria are capitalized as property, plant and equipment

Net realizable value is determined based on estimated sefling price, less further costs expected to
be incurred to completion and disposal,
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3.5 Foreign currency transactions

The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional CUITENCY,

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on injtial recognition in the functional curmency. using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction,

At each balance sheet date, foreign eurrency monetary items (such as Cash, Receivables. Lovans,
Payables, etz.} are reported using the closing exchange rate (BC seiling rate for payable and TT
buying rate for receivable).

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monctary items or on reporting at each balance
sheet date of the Company's monetary ilems at the closing rate are recognized as gain or loss in
the peried in which they arise,

Non-monetary ftems (such as Investments, PPE, 2le.) which are carmried at historical cos

denominated in a foreign curréncy are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

4.0 Revenue and Other Income

Sales are recognized on transfer of si gnificant risks and rewards of ownershi p to the buyer, which
gencrally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers at an amount that company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those products/services. Sales include excise duty but exclude
Value added Tax / goods and service tax,

Income in respect of Interest an delayed realization from customers is provided on accrual basis.
Income in respect of Interest on Fixed Deposit Receipis is provided on accrual basis,
Recovery from doubiful debiors is recognized as income on realization basis,

3.7 Employee Benefits

All employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
period in which the employee render the related services are classified as shor-lerm employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated ahsences, performance
incentives, etc. are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service,
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All emplovee benefits that are expected to be setiled whally after 12 months after the end of
period in which the employee render the related services are classified as long-term employee
benefits (Gratuity and earned leave accruals),

Gratuity is provided in the statement of Profit and loss in compliance with Gratuity Aet, 1972,
Earned leave accruals are provided as per the approved HR policy of the com pany.

Long term Employee benefits with regard to the employees deputed by Promater Companies are
provided by their parent organizations.

3.8 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are atiributable 1o the acquisition, construction, or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of suih asset till such time the asset is ready
for its intended use or sale, after netting off any income camed on temporary investment of such
funds. A qualifving asset is an asser that necessarily requires & substantial period of time
(generally over twelve months) to pet ready for its intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.9 Leases

The Company as a lessee

a) Identifving a lease
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land, The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a Jease, af inception of 2 contract, A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
o control the use of an identified assel, the Company asscsses whether (i) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (ii} the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the |ease and tiii) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

Company recognizes right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets,
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¢l

d)

e}

Imitial recognition of Right of use asset (ROU)

AL the date of commencement of the lease, the company recopgnises a right of use ssset
(ROT). ROU ascets are initially measured a1 cost less any accumulated deprecistion and
Impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement of Right of use asset (ROU)

ROU azsets sre subscquently amortized using straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the usefy] life of ROU assets or end of the lease term, If
ownership of the leased asset transfers 1o the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the excrrise of 5 purchase option, deprecintion is caleulated usi ng the estimated wseful
life of the asset,

Initial measurement of Lease Linbility
Lease lishility are initially measured at the present value of lease pavments 1o be paid over
the lease term, discounted using the company’s incremental bomowing rate available at the
time of Initial measurement,
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liabilities comprise of the
following:

Fixed Payments, including in-substance fixed payments,

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate,
- Amount expected to be pavable under a residual valye guarantee, and

The exercise price under a purchase option, extension option and penalties for early

termination only if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise those aptions,
Subsequent measurement of Lease Liability
Lease Liabilities are subsequently increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In additian, the tarying amount of lease liabilitics is re-
measured if there is a modification, o change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments
{e.g.. changes 10 future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used o
determine such lease payments) or 4 change in the assessment of an option o purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assels

The Company applies the shom-term lease recognition exem plion to its shor-term leases (i,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 marnths or less from the commencement date and do
nat contain a purchase option). It also epplies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption. Lease payments on short-term lepses and leases of low value assets are
recognized as expense in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Page 56 of 122



As a lessor

[eases are classified as operating leases when all the risks and rewards of ownership of an
asset do not transfer substantially. Rental income from operating lease is recognised as
revenue. Leases are classified as finance leases when substantiall v all of the risks and rewards
of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee, Amounis due from lessees under
finaniee lezses are recorded a3 receivables and finance lease income is allocated o accounting
periods o reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net invesiment outstanding in
respect of the lease,

10 Taxes

Current Income Tax

Carrent tax is provided at amounts expected 1o be paid (or necovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assers and liahilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. unused Tax Loss and Lease Assets & Liability.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected 10 apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the lisbility is settled, based on tax rates {and ax laws) that
hive heen enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

The carrying amoumt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each halance sheet date and is adjusted
1o the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxahle profit will be available 1w allow
all or part of the asset 1o be recovered.

3.1 Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments
Geeneral

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as
a result of a pest event, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lishility. When discounting is
uscd, the increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,
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Provisions, contingent liabilities. contingent assets snd commitments sre reviewed at each
balance sheet date.

A comtingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or o present
obligation that may, but probably will ol require an outflow of Tesources, or @ present
obligation whosa amount cannot be estimated reliably,

312 Government Grants

Giovernment Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will e complied with,

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions. with an
interest rute below the current applicable market rate. the effect of this favourable interest is
regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance i initially recognised and measured at
fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying
value of the loan and the procesds received, The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable 1o financial liabilities.

3.13Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ MCH=CULTEnT
classification,

An assel as current when it js:

* Expected to be realized or intended 10 be soid or consumed in normal operating cyele

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Expected to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

= Cash or cush equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,
A liability is current when:

* Itis expected 1o be sentled in normal operating cycle

= ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

* Risdue to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right 1 defer the seitlement of the liability for at least pwelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
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S 14Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i} Financial assets
Classification
The Company classifies financial assels as subsequently measured ot amortized cost. Fair value
through other comprehensive income or fair value through statement of profit and loss on the

basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash Nows
characteristics of the financial assel.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial nssets are recognized mitially at fair value plus, in the case of lnancial assets not
recorded an fair value through statement of profit and loss, transaction costs that are artributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purpeses of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in below calegories:

4) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured &t amartized cost if it is held within a business model
whose ohjective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash Mows and the contractual
terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates o cash Mows that are selely payments of
principals and interesss on the principal amounts ousstanding,

b) Financial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if
it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both cillecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets and the contrectual terms of the financial assers pive rise
on specified dates to cash flows thar are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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¢) Financial assets at fair value through statement of profic and loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair
valued through statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights te receive cash fMlows from the assel
have expired or the Company has transferred its ri ghts to receive cash Aows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assels

The Company assesses impairment based on expecied credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognitlon of impairment loss on the financial assets thit are trude
receivables or contract revenue receivables and all legse receivables,

il) Financial liabilities
Classification

The company classifies all fimancisl liabilitics as subsequently measured at amortized cog except
for financial labilities at fair value through statement profit and loss. Such biabilities including
derivatives that are liabilities shall be subsequently measured ar fair value.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial labilities are sitially recognized ar fair value, and in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial
liahilities include trade and other payahles, loans and barrowings including bank overdraft.

Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial lighilities depends on their elassification as described below:

* Financial Liabilities at Amortized Costs
Alter initial recognition, interess bearing loans and bomrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost under the EIR Method, Giains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss when the lisbilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.
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Amortized cost is caleulsted by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization s
included as finance cost in the statement of profit and loss.

= Effective interest method

The effective interest methed is 2 method of caleulating the amontised eost of a debt
Instrument and allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimaied future cash receipts (incleding all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate.
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument. or, where appropriate, a shorer period, 10 the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

*  Financial Liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognilion as ar fair value
through profit or loss. Financial lishilities are classified s held for rding if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition

A linancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing linancial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
linhility and the recognition of 2 new libility. The difference in the respective CHITY iNg amounts
15 recognized in the stalement of profit and loss,

iii)  Offserting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are offser and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforeeable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention 10 settle on i net hasis, (o realize the assets and senile the liabilities simulanenusiy,
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A 150thers

Liquidated damages, if any, are accounted for as and when recovery is affected and the matter is
considered settled by the management.

Custom Duty and other claims are accounted for on acceptance in principle.

A 16 Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit from cortinuing operations and total
profit, both atiributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted sverage number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted Eamings per Equity share is coleulated by dividing the Adjusted Net Profit Afier Tax
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity Sharcs
outstanding during the period adjusted of the effect of all dilutive porential equity shares.

317  Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The prepamtion of the Company's financial statemems requires mansgement © make
Judgements, estimates and assumptions that aflect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of financial statements. Fstimates and assumptions are continuously
evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including cxpectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Revision: of accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which estimates are revised and in any furure period affected. Changes in
estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation o claims against
the Company. including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events necur or fa)l to
oceur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies' inherently

involves the exercise of significant judgment and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of
fulure events.

Page 62 of 132



Leases-Estimating the Incremental Borrowing Rate

The Company cannot readily determine the imerest rate implicit in the lease. therelore, it uses its
Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR) to measure leass liahilities. The IBR is the rate of interest tha
the Company would have te pay to horrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary 1o obtain an asset of a similar value 1o the right-of-use asset in a similar
ecomomic environment. The IBR therefore reflects whal the Company "would have to pay’.
which requires estimation when no observable rutes are available or when they need o be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using

observable inputs (such 85 market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates,

Impairment of financial asscts

The impaiment provisions for financial assats are hased on assumptions about risk of defaull and
expected lose rates. The Company uses judgment in mitking these assumptions and selecting the
mputs e the impairment calculation, based on Company™s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reparting period.
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited
(A JV of GAIL Ga=s Limited and Bharat Petroleumn Corporation Limited)

Mote-4 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS L4 in_l;alth]
- As at 31st A% at 31st
Particulers March 2024 | March 2023
Considered good- Unsecurad
Hooking up Charges {Prepaid)
|Tofal . -
ote : During the year, Company has create or the remaining hooking up charges, Refer

Notes to Accounts 31.07

Note-5 INVENTORIES (2 in Lakh)

As at 3ict Az at 31st
Particulars March 2024 | March 2023

(As taken, valued and certified by the managemeant |

Stock in Trade ;

Matural Gas 0.73 &.70

Finished Goods

Compressed Matural Gas Z.BE 237

|Tntul b1 9.07
Mote-6A TRADE RECEIVABLES - NON CURRENT (¥ in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31st | As at 31st

March 2024 | March 2023

Trade Receivahles ;-

Sacured and Considered good
From Related Parties

Fram Others

Unsecured and Considerad good
From Related Parties

From Others 42.05 49 .41
Having significant increase in Credit Risk

lll::r-e-:lt Imnalred 20.43 4.55
Less: Allowance far doubtful delbis (20.43) (3.18)
(Total q42.05 50,78 |
Mote-68 TRADE RECEIVABLES- CURRENT (¥ in Lakh)
Particulars As at 31st | As at 31st

March 2024 March 2023

Trade Receivables -
Secured and Considered good
From Related Parlies
From Cthears 175.00

1736
uUnsecured and Considered good
Frorm Helated Parties 105,67 136 649
From Cthers 234.06 597 .50
Having significant increase in Credit Rigk
Credit Impakred 120
Less: Allowance For doubtful debils 1 12.26)
Total 514.82 771.55
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Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(A IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited)

Mote-7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (% in Lakh)
» As at 31st | As at 31st
Particulars March 2024 | Marct 2023
Cash on hand 973 B.41

Balances with Banks

-Currgnt Accounts 122.15 294,70
I_-Fi'-ced Deposait 425,65 451.08

Tatal 557.53 752.19

Note-8 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAMN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (¥in !_..akh}
As at 31st As at I1st

|Flrti1:ulﬂl‘s

Other Bank Balances

March 2024 | March 2023

- Term Deposit -HDFC with maturity more than three manths 152.41 1.559,17
= Term Deposit -HDFC with maturity maore than three manthe hald as 6.01
margin maney :
- Term Deposit -ICICT with maturity more than three manths 6,41 300,148
(Total 726.83 1,654.34
MNote-9 CURRENT ASSETS - FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS = (% in Lakh)
As at 31zt As at 31st
indaenolody March 2024 | March 2023
Security Deposit
Lonsidered good- Secured . -
Considered good- Unsecurad 277 2,72
[Total .77 2.72)
MNote-10 CURRENT TAX ASSET (MET) (% in Lakh)
As at 31st | As at 31st
CARTEENLARS March 2024 | March 2023
Prowision for Current Tax NAY 1 ﬂﬁ_gﬂ 69,57
TOE Beczivable A0 66 1964
Advance Income Tax 105, 00 H4 .68
MAT Credit Entidement 167.17 5.32
Current Tax Assets (B} 302 B 109,69
CURRENT TAX Assets (NET) (B-A) 164.03 40.12 |
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Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(A IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited)

Note-11 OTHER CURRENT NON FINANCIAL ASSETS (¥ in Lakh)
Paiticulars As at 31ist A= at 31st
March 2024 | March 2023
Prepaid Expenses 41.240 53.38
G5T Recelvable 0.43 2.11
Extise Duty (PLA) 255 140,95
O&M Stock Z.48 Z.84
Amaunt recoverable from Mecon - 93.48
Amount Recoverable from S.H.0 Kapasheda [Police Station) Delhi 0.39 =
Revenue Accrued but not due 11.12 11.94
Other Management Employes Recaivable . 0.22
vance o Suppliers .86 14.39
Advance ks Other - 3.64
TODS Recaverable from Vendors 3.32 4,36
otal 68.35 197.31

Refer Notes to Accounts 31.07

Mote : During the year, Company has created ROU for the remaining hooking up charges.

Page 69 of 182



Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited
A Joint Wanture of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petrodeem Corporation Limited

Mote-12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Tha Buthorised, issued, subscribed and fully paid -up share capital comprises of shares hawing & par value of © 10/~ eack as

ol o -
Equity Shares Capital

{8 Im Lakh}
A5 at 318l March A at 315K
FARTICLILARS
L] Miarch 2033
Iﬂlﬂm.i:er_d_ﬁhm_uﬂul
SO000000. Bty Shares of € 10)- each 2,000 9,004 |
Lssueed . Sub -
IH-?I.EEIIIEI:I Edquity Shares of ¥ 10/- aach R 4,447
[Previpus Year 21400000 Equity Shares of #1037~ gach]
R —— Total — B, 716 | 4,440
Wote-12(a) Reconciliation of the number shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and end of the year
[F im Lakh)
Particulars As at I1st March J024 A3 ot 315t March 2023
Humber of Nurmbser of .
shares (in Lakn) | 1517 LK) | o s finLanny| (% 0 Lakh)
[5hares cutstanting at the Degnnmg R e year 42300 [ d,440 T A44.00 4,440
Ehares issued doring tha veasr 437760 276
Lhargs Bought nAck during tha yaar 3 : - )
Shares putstanding at the end of the year B71.60 H716 ek G A &, 440

Mote L2[b) - Sheres in the company held by each
ahares held (= as given belowe

shareholder helding more than 5 percent shares specdfying the numbar of

Az at 31st March 55__54 As at 315t March 2023
Hama of the Sharehaldor Mumibser of Humbar af :
shares (in Lakh) [ T O HOWIRG | o res (in Lakny | ¥ of Holding
Bheres Ferrok vl Coeporatian Limites 435.90 S0 33100 b
GALL Gas Linitod 435 44 SO0y 221.00 S
Maote L2 (c] Sharcholding of Promoters af the end of year
Numbsr of % of takal % Change
Pramotes ba
. Shares (in Lakh) shares during the year
I. Bharat Potrolewm Corporation Liniteg A15 80 S0%: Hil
2. GAIL Gas Limirgd £35.80 S0 Hiil
ata Bl L.60 100
Male-13 OTHER EQUITY (& in Lakh}
PARTICULARS As at A1st March fis at 31st
F024 March 2023 |
|Retained Earnings:
[Op=nirg Balance i, 21 (125533
hanges i ALCowitang Palicy or Frar Periad Errors . -
aod ¢ Curren] Yaar Prost f (Lass)] L0615 227.24
Total (A &7 56 101,71
Share Appiication Mooy Dending Slineman ;3] 4. 276,00
Tomal (A+E) 607,50 4.377.71
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Liminag
A Joint Yenture of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Potroleum Corporatien Limited

Note-14 BOREOWINGS (¥ in Lakh
et 31st  |As ab Tist March]
PARTICULARS
March 2034 i FE ]
Mon Current Borrowings
Secured Term Loan
= HEFC Bank Lrd L R T B, 10631
- Intercarporate Lian
Loaan from Relaled Parties
Gail Gzs Lig 375,00 Tho.on
Bhamat Pobroloum Corperanion Limited 375,00 TE0.00
— TOTAL 7.826.31 &, 606,31
= HBFC Bank Lto.

(¥ The Loan 18 Seoired by way of iegt crarges &h the Head ascels |
present ang fubu-c sgainst total sencbiened smount of Rs. 104 Cro
warking capltal lenders of the berawer may be provided socend ©

mgveable and Immavable] of Haridwar Natural Gas Frivain Limited, bath
r=. L0an drawn upto 31st Harch 2024 of ¥ 103.00 Croee. Provided that, the
harge an the Nxed azsets of Hancwe- Matural Gad Hrivalo Limimd.

{It] The Lean is Socured by way of first charges on the Current Assets af Haridwar Natural Gas Priyats Ly
mcluding tRat & he acceunls in which the cash flows fram {he orojed, shall Be daposied,
kanders of Haridw o Hatursl Gas Privale Limited or 3ay other ERCuFDy a2 moy be mutualy

tod, Lotk present and futurg
o parl passy Basis with tho warking captal
el wpan,

Cill] The doan rares fMosting Intereet linked 1o 1-yamr MEUR of HOFC Bank plus a
first disbursement @ 19 buly. Current vear's apolicabile intarack Fabi v 5.05% a,
Wiighted Averege of EMective fate of Tnterest as per Ind AS aftar adjusting Iog

= Int@rédvrporate Lean
Loan from Related Parties

{17 The Loan ik Serured By way of Sacnng rafking perl pEasy Eharpe on el T Asse of Marigwar Natural s Prvele Limked, bBath present
ard huture, inched vg that on aocounts i which =ash flaw #ram the arojoct ahall oe deposited ar any other securty Bs may o mgbually
agresd Liion, agaanst Dotal sandiored emount of 8. 15 crorp fach frem both the prorraters viz. GATL Gas Lid, and GPEL Lig

spread of NIL Dps oreveiling on each anniversary of date of
a. with monthly reit with effectiee from 19-07-7073, Tha
n raisirg cost progoftionatedy £ 5.08%

L) The dapn i fepayahes Lo Cuiariery Eousd insraiments of ¥ 831,75 Lakhe cach after expry of mormterdum of are yoar from the dges of
dismiirsai

(101} Thee Imtorest gpplicabls at the e of 1-year MELR of HOFD Bank provaling on the date af disturssd Plus 25 bom. The ocurrant spplicabis

raie of Irterest s % 20%. The Floating rame of Tnterest will be reset at she beginniieg of aach Mrancel voar as per grevailing 3-year MELE of
HEFL Bank an {fg) date and will b applicabie fr whals financial vesr
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited
A Jaint Venture of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroledm Corporation Limited

Mota=15 Mon Currant Lease Liabilities

PARTICULARS

AsS at J1st

1LEEIEE- Liahility

March 2024 | March 2023 |

As at 3list

15.13 17.55
Total 15.13 17.55
Mote-16 Shart Term Borrowings
PARTICULARS Az at 31st As at 31si

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrow) ngs
HOFC Bank Lig

March 1024 March 2023

I,832.00 S30.60
[nber corporate Loan FEQ.00 FE0.00
Total 1,782.00 1.680.560
MNota-17 Current Lease Liabilitlos
e i d urrent bease Liabilitles
A% at J1st Az at 31st
ICULA
PARY i March 2024 March 2023
Lease Lability .54 5 .5
Total = 9.5 5.84
Mote-18A Trade Payables - Non Current
Az at 3lst A% at 31st
PARTICULARS March 3024 | March 2023
Trade Payablos to Related Parties -
BPCL LTD (Emplayes Remuneration) Ira.an
GAIL {INDIA) Lid 15.23
Total (A) 39518
Trade Payables other than Micro and Small Enterprisas -
Total (B8) %
Total (A+B) 325.18
Trade Payables to Micro and Small Enterprices -
Tatal (C) F=
Total (A+B+C) 39518
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited
A Joint Wenture of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Patroleum Corporation Limited

Mate-188 Trade Payables - Current

PARTICULARS Ag At 3=t A.-'nt Jistk
March 3034 | March 2023
|'I'|'mh:| Fayables Lo Related Parties ;-
BPCL LTD (Employes Remuneratisn) 32.51 370,55
BPCL LT {Facilty Chargas) 794
3ad Zas Lid (Employes Eermunmration ) 13.23 1394
EAIL [ENDIA) Lid A58 .73 S12.07
Total (4] 0741 70596
Trade Payables othar than Micro and Small Enterprises :- b 149,01
Taotal [B) A 7F: TA9.01
Total (A+8) 37217 454 97

Trede Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises :-

Tatal (€] :
Total [A+B+C) 37217 BEAOF
Trade Payable ageing schedule for F. ¥, 2023-24 (%in Lakh)
Qutstanding for fulinwmnl periods from :'ue d#'fmd' payment
Less than e than 3
T it 1-2 years 2-3 years L Total
{TYMSME - -
{IT) Dthars 334,45 HF 52 272537 b e 1
(ILL] Dispubad dues- HEME - : -
(W] Degputed duss- Others - -
Total]l 334.46 Z07.52 218.37 - 757.35 |
Trade Payable ageing schedule for F, ¥, 20232-23 [ in Lakh)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
LEss than 1% yaibek 2-3 years arg than 4 Tkl
= 1 year years
[LIMEME -
[1I} Others 63119 12378 = 054,07
[1I1} Disputed dupc- MSME - - -
iV Dispited dies- Orhers = - - =
Total| 631.19 373,78 - - 954.97
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Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited
A Joint Venture of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Carporation Limitec

Note-19 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LTABILITIES (T in Lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICU
® s March 2024 | March 2023
Others Payables
Security Deposits 767.70 486,16
|Sentractor Retention money for capital projects 31788 531.04
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0412 63.40
|Sther Management Employee Liability - -
Salary Payable 5,98 1.19
TOTAL 1,155.68 1,081.79
MNote-20A NON CURRENT PROVISIONS (% in Lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st
PARTICUL
i ARS March 2024 | March 2023
Provision for Expenses & Capex Liability 1.13 0.31
Total 1.13 0.31
MNote-208 CURRENT PROVISIONS {Z in Lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st
CuL
FIRTTRULARS March 2024 | March 2023 |
Provision for Expenses & Capex Liahility 363.20 B04.31
Total (A) 363.20 604.31
Provisional Liabilities
-Statutory Audit Fee 1.18 0.89
=Intermal Audit Fee 0.59 0.59
Total (B) 1.77 i.48
Grand Total (A+B) 364.97 605.79
Note-21 OTHER CURRENT NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (¥ in Lakh)
As at 31st As at 31st

PARTICULARS

Payable to other :

March 2024

March 2023

Advance Received from customers 2.44 Z.38

Statutory Payables

statutory Dues (Duties & Taxes) 16.75 26.05
Total 19.19 28.42
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limitod
(A IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petreleum Corporation Limited)

Note-22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS {¥ in Lakh)
Figures fior the Year | Figures for the Year
PARTICULRS anded as on 31st onded as on 31st
March 2024 March 2023
{a) Sale of Gas (CNG and DPNG) Ineluding excise duty 10,260 .65 B.330.70
(b} Other operating Revenue [Rafar ta Nota 22(a) Below! 728.49 B43.46
,:Tunl “10,980.17 9,174.16 |

Mote-22(a] Other operating Revenue

Figures for the Year

Figures for the Yaar

PARTICULRS anded as on 3ist anded as on 315t
March 2024 March 2023

oervice Charaes on Gas Jobwaork 557.949 FTE A
AppEcation Fees - Income 0.28 2.67
Cheqgue Return Charges 0.45 37
Irtt. & Other Charges Received on Gas Sale 18 22 16.55
Doubtful Debts Recoverad- OPNG .06

Scheme-02 Charges 50,00 45 45
[Tatal 738.49 B43.45

Note-23 OTHER INCOME

Figures for the Year

Figures for the Year

PARTICULRS ended as on I1st ended as on Jist
March 2024 Harch 2023
Interest Recelved on IT Refund;Fized Deposit & Sacurity deposit 118:65 Soan
Miscellaneaus Income 43,73 28.33
lTntal 168.37 38.23
Mote-24 GAS CONSUMED (% im Lakh)

Figures for the Year

Figures for the Year

Particulars ended as on 31st ended &5 on 31st
March 2024 March 20213
Dpaning Stock 6.70 1.91
i+ Purchase of Gas 5,554, 65 5.444, 21
[-Gas Used as Fuel 253,58 224,56
[-}Closing stock 5,73 B.70
Total 6,302, 04 5,.!14-!'5
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Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited
(A IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleumn Corporation Limited)

Note-25 EMPLOYEES BENEFIT EXPENSES (¥ in Lakh)
Figures for the Year | Figures for the Year
Particulars ended as on 31t ended as on 31st
March 2024 March 2023
Salary and Wages 22.26 5.84
Emplayer PF Cantribution 1.76 0.74
Gratuity Expense 0.49 0.19
Eamed Leave expense .45 0.12
Staff Welfare 5.56 0.02
[Total 30.52 6.91
Note-26 INCREASE OR DECREASE IN INVENTORY (T in Lakh)
Figures for the Year | Figures for the Year
Particulars ended as on 31st ended as on 31st
March 2024 Mzrch 2023
(a)Inventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods 2.88 2.37 |
Total 2 HE 2.37
{b}Inventories at the beginning of the yvear
Finished Goods 237 1,36
i Total 2.37 1.36
Total {0.51) 1.01)
Note-27 FINANCE COST (¥ in Lakh)
Flgures for the Year | Figures for the Year
Particulars ended as an 31zt ended as on 315t
March 2024 March 2023
Bank Commissian/Charges 23.10 22.86
Leaze [nterack 1.323 1.48
1Ea nk Interest Charges | 840.89 948,72
965.32 973.06
Less: Transfer to Capital Work-in-Progress (223,23} (331.70)
Total 742.00 641.36 |
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Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited

(A IV of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited)

Mote-28 OTHER EXPENSES (% in Lakh)
Figures for the Year | Figures for the Year
Particulars endad as of Jlst ended as an Jist
March 2024 March 2023
|Power & Fuel Charges
-Electricity & Power Connection Expenses a5 .58 31,43
LOWF Running charges 48,85 54.05
-Compressor Fuel Cosl 255.49 220047
-0 & Fuel- Gern. Rent 2.33 2.50
Office Rent B.55 627
Office Maintenance Expense o.i9 0.37
REM to Building 3.7 2.93
REM to Cther 9.77 2.332
Cperation & Maintenance Charges A20.1% 25087
Insurance Charges 46,41 31.55
Rates & Taxes - D.15
Audik Fae 3.54 < 36
Audit Expenses 0.35 .
Store & Spares Maintenance - 049
Cffice Communicaticn Charges 3.3 2.91)
PFrinting & Stationary £,.37 3.24
Travelling Expens=s £. 90 5.6
Advertisement & Publicky 664 217
Vighigle Hiring & Aunning Experse 23.50 20.62
Professional and Consultancy Expenses 10.31 18.0%5
ERP Application Operating Expernses &3.65 35,02
Security Services 56.(0H 5117
Hook-up Operation Charges 18,47 17.97
Contract Manpower Expenses 279,58 23054
DPNG Regn, Charges 0.Eeq 1.2
Charges to PNGRA 10.00 10,04
=eminar, Conference Fee & Meeting Exp .63 36l
Employee Recruitement Exp .83
Welbsite Charges 374 10.B8
Interest on labe payment 0.61 34,23
Land Rent .64 -
Farecourt Expenses &8 85 BLS7
Fantry Expentis 2. 06 1.39
Misc, Expanses .04 0.34
Management Transfer Exps 061 283
C5E Expenses = 276
Loss on Write off of Aszet 32.85 =
Prowvision for Doubtful Debts 31.51 318
Postage & Courdar t.as .31
Statutory Expenses 2.55 3576
Fire & Safety Expenses 32.34 I3TE
Facility Charges at Rataill Outlet 43,12 30.16
Managemant Service Cost
L3Ince some ot the Employees posted a1 Hardwar Natural Gas
Private Limited are on the Rale of GAIL Gas Lid & Bharat
Patroleurn Corporakion Lid, the expenditure Peim bursed/paveble
are shown under other expenses instead of Employes cost)
Staff Salary 334,36 315.50
Total & 1,776.25 1560.43
Less: Management Service for Employee Cost transferred
to Capital Work -in -Progress {Refer Notes to Account
Skaff Salary oo ag 14005
Total B [B9.99) (140.05)
Less: Transfer to IEDC (Incidental Expenditure During
Construction]
Blectricity Expensas & Power Conngction Expenze - 270
Rent Office & Others - 31z
Insurance 14.17 1692
Travelling Expenss - 282
Contract Manpawer Expenses / 33,50 5324
Wehicle Hirfing & Running Expengs B.43 7.70
Security Services 14 02 iZ.7s
Total © {76.12) {99.38)
Total (A+B+C) 1,600.14 1,321.00
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Note-29 Earning Per Share (% in Lakh)
A= at 3ist Az at 31st

Particulans March 2024 March 2023

Profit (Loss) attributable to equity share halders 596,15 227.24

Nominal value of equity share (in ¥) 10.00 10.00
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
Dutstanding at the
Weighted Average No. of Shares outstanding at the 871.60 444,00
_end of the year (in Lakh)

Basi:'Earning: per share-in ¢ 0.68 0.51
(B) Diluted Earnings per share-in #

Profit (Loss) attributable to equity share holders 596.15 227.24
Nominal value of equity share (in #) 10.00 10.00
Weighted Average No. of Shares outstanding at the B871.60 444.00
end of the year (in Lakh)

Add: Effect of Share Application Money which are = 427.60
Dilutive Potential Equity Shares
Diluted Ea rnings per share-in ¢ 0.68 0.26

Note-30 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net) (T in Lakh)

Particulars As at 31st As at 3ist
March 2024 March 2023

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Property, Plant and equipments and Intangible assets 1,066.98 804.21
Other {(2.15) (1.05)
Sub-total (A) 1,064.83 803.16
Less: Deferred tax assets
Unused tax losses 673.26 638.57
Disallowance u/s 40(a)(ia) - -
Sub-total (B) 6573.26 638.57
Total (B-A) (391.57) {164.59)
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Sub Note 30A- Deferred Tax Wnrklﬂ

(¥in Lak
Az at ILst March | As at 31st March
Farticulars 3024 2023
1. Property, Plant & Equipment
Larrying amount of Property, Plant & Ecuipment 12,422.88 11,604 96
Tax base of the fixed assets B,587.58 B,714.18
Taxable temparary difference (3, 835.30) (£,890.78)
DTL @ 27.82% (PY 27.82%) (1,066.98) (B04.21)
Trid to Statement of Profit & Less [Cr/{Dr)] [262.77) (335,.28)
2. Leasehold Land
Carrying amount of Right to Use assets 16 98 19,53
Carrying amount of Lease Liability 24.72 43.39
Taxable temporary differepce 7.7a 375
DTA @ 27.B2% (PY 27.82%) 2:15 1.05
Trfd to Statement of Profit & Loss [Cr/{Dr)] 1.10 1.15
[Carrying amcunt of loases
Tax base of carry forwerd of apening losses (2,295.37) [1,627.71)
Tax Base carry forward of Last Year = -
*Tax base of cary farward of Current Year losses (L29.68) [E67.66)
Tax base of carry forward of total lesses (2420.05) (e 95,37
Beductible temporary differsnce (2,420.05) (2,295.37)
DTA B27.82% (PY 27.82%) 673.26 638,57
Trfd to Statement of Profit & Loss [Cr/({Dr)] 34.69 215.37
* Profit ; (Loss) as per Books BO0.0% 416.63
Add! Soccial Welfare Disallowad Uz 37 - 278
Add: Prewision for Gratuity (Sac 438) 0,68 .
Add: Provision for Doubtful Debts 31.51 .
Interest on TOS,/TDS Expense . 0.15
Add: Depreciation a5 per Companies Act 2013 434 .06 384,07
Less: Depreciation as per Income Tax (1,421.33) [1,471.27]
Add: Loss on Write off of Asset iZ.B5 =
Tatal {1d2.18) {067, 66)
Proflt f {Loss) as per Income Tas Act [122.18) (8EV.86)
el Amoun n T 055 r1] (226,98 [118.76
Net OTA/{DTL) (391.57 [164.58
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HARIDWAR NATURAL GAS PRIVATE LIMITED
(A JV of GAIL GAS LIMITED & BHARAT PETROLEUM CORPORATION LIMITED)
REGD. OFFICE: COCO-CNG STATION, KHASRA NO, 569-570, NEAR GOVIND
GARDEN. JWALAPUR, HARIDWAR, UTTRAKHAND-249404

NOTE 31:-NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

I, Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited (“The company’} domiciled in India with registered
office in Roorkee, Uttarakhand. The Company is a joint venture of GAIL Gas Limited (a
wholly owned subsidiary of GAIL (India) Limited) and Bharat Petroleum Corporation
Limited with equal share holding pattern. The company was incorporated in 2016 for smooth
implementation of City Gas Distribution (CGD) Project in Haridwar, Uttarakhand as per the
autharisation of Petroleum and Natural Gas Regulatory Board (PNGRB) in July 2015,

2. Bank Guarantee Details:

ia): As per the regulation of PNGRB, Performance Bank Guarantee of T 2,000,000 Lakhs issued
by ICIC] Bank, New Delhi valid upto 26.09.2024 has been submitted 1o FNGRE.

Beneficia | Purpose | Bank | BG Number BG Amend | Expiry | Claim
ry Name Name Amounnt | ed date  Date Expiry
% in Lakhs Date
PNGREB | PNORB ICICI | 0393BGROORGRIT | 2000.00 75- 26- | 26-Sep-
Authorisation | Bank ‘ Avg- | Sep- | 2025
Ltd, | 2021 | 2024 |

{ky: Other than the above, Bank Guarantees of Rs. 757.00 Lakhs in agzregate have heen issucd
by ICICI Bank in favour of Gail (India) Limited against various Ceas purchase agreement
signed by the compan y

5. Contingent Linbilities:

Company has contingent liabilities amounting Rs. 23477 | akhs against the Annual Take or
Pay claim (ATOPQ) CY 2023, for the peried Jan23 — Dee 23 raised by GAIL Indin Lid as
per the claim letter GAILMK TG/ATOP(CY-2023)/2024 dated 29.02 2024, due Lo failure in
lifting of the committed annual quantity of RENG- JCL as per the terms of GSARLNG-JUC
agreement signed on 28,12.2021. Company has signed the mitigation plan with GAIL India
Ltd against the said claim to draw the RLNG -JCC commited quantity in the next 5-7 years
at the GSA- agreed rates along with differential DCQ at RLNG-HH rates s applicable at
the time of drawl plus additional charges.
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4. (a): The employees working in the various disciplines have been identified as working for (a)
project activities and'or (b) operation activities, Therefore, the employee cost pertaining o
those emplovees engaped directly in project activities are direcily charged o project
activities, Whereas, employees cost pertaining to those employees which have been engaged
in both of the aforesaid activities are charged to project and operation activities i. e. CEO and
CFD cost in the ratio of 35:65, CM (Projects, C&P and Billing) cost in the ratio of 25:75 and
Company Secretary cost is charged 100%: to O&M. Travelling expenditures of all these
employees are booked to O&M.

{b): Other manpower cost hired ineluding through third party has been booked as per their
engagement in Project and O&M at actuals. Security engaged for project activities. vehicle
hired, warehouse rent and electricity have been allocated to Incidental Expenditure as part of
project activities. Insurance cost against the CWIP including capital goods in stock is booked
w0 the IEDC and rest is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss,

5, During the vear, some expenses have been transferred o “Incidental Cxpenditure during the
Construction (IEDC)" which forms part of Capital work in Progress. The detail of transferred
amount is as follows:

(in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars F.Y.2023.24 FY.2022-23 |

| Management expenses 99.99 14005 |

F.xpc;;':s oither than Management expenses .45 198,06 ]
Total Expenses 196.44 33811

6. Capital Work in Progress (CWIF) include asset under construction which are under different
stage of completion, capitalization will be made as and when assets sre intended 10 be used.

7. Company has changed its accounting practice on the basis of the opinion of the expert
advisory committee of Institute of Chartered Accountant of India. The company has
capitalised a sum of Rs 565.99 Lakhs againsi the Hooking up charges, forming part of Right
of Use Asset after transfer from prepaid expenses. The amortization upto previous financial
year amounting to Rs. 32544 Lakhs has been adjusted o gross amount, The change in
classification does not have any impact on Statement of Profit and Loss.

Company has presented a third Balance Shest as at the beginning of financial year 2022-23
in addition to the comparative financial statements as per the requirement of Indian
Accounting  Standard  (Ind A8 1 'Presemtation of Financial Statemenis.
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8. During the year, company has done overhauling of its two compressors ot iis CGS (mother
station), due to completion of running hours. The overhauling cost of Bs 44.13 Lakhs
incurred for these 2 compressors has been capitalised during the financial year after
decapitalising the written down value of the replaced components of these compressors
which has been booked as loss on ageount of writing off the components on Statement of
Profit and Loss,

9, During the vear balance amount of ¥1.74 Lakhs has been amortized towards permission
charges. The permission charges ar¢ amortized over d period of 5 vears.

The breakup of above mmortized amount during the year is given below:

{Tin Lakhs)
Particulars T | FY 202324 [ FY 202223 |
IF:E'i.-ssiun Charges ’ 174 349 _
Total | 174 349

10, Share Capital

a) The Company is a Joint Venture of GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat Petroleum Corporation
Limited and the shares are jssued to the promoter companies in cqual ratio as per the
approval of the Board.

b} The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is 2 9,000.00 Lakhs against which Fquaty
Shares of ¥ 8.716.00 Lakhs have been issued os on Balance sheet date with the approval
of the Board.

¢y On 17" April 2023, company has issued equity shares of ¥ 4.276 Lakhs to its promotar
M/s Bherat Petraleum Corporation Lid and GAIL Gas Lid i.e 21380000 Equity shares to
each promoter at ¥ 10/ gach against the share epplication money of 2 4.276 Lakhs (in
cosh & kind) which was received on 10 March 2023 & 13" March 2023,

11. Land Details (Free Hold & Leaschold)

a) Frechold Land measuring 4000 sq. mir. Near JURS Country, Roorkee Road, Jwalapur,
Haridwar amounting to ¥ 690,94 Lakhs.

bj Leaschold Land measuring 1080 sq. mir. near Gail SV Station, Bhagwanpur, Chandanpur
at Roorkee amounting to # |32.28 Lakhs has been aken on lease for 30 years in T Y
2019-20.

¢} Leasehold land messuring 100 sq. mir in Jwalapur at Haridwar amounting 1o T 3.58
lakhs'year (Present book value of Right of use asset T 16558 Lakhs, life of Right of use
asset has been taken as 10 vears on best judgment basis in F.Y. 2020-21).
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12. In terms of disclosure requirement as per Ind— AS 23 on “Bomowing Cosls”, Company has
taken the loan of T 13,340.00 Lakhs for the purpose of CGD project out of which ¥ 9,608.51
lakhs is outstanding as on 31-03-2024, tofal finance cost amounting to ¥ 96399 Lakhs
including bank charges of ¥ 23.10 Lakhs (Previous Year 3 971.58 Lakhs including bank
charges ¥ 22.86 Lakhs) was incurred, out of which an amount of ¥ 740,76 Lakhs (Previous
Year 639,88 Lakhs) charged to Statement of Profit & Loss for post capitalization period
considering ratio of 65:35 and ¥ 223.23 Lakhs (Previcus Year ¥ 331.70 Lakhs) was
capitalized towards eapital Werk in Progress during the period. Weighted Average Effective
Rate of Interest after adjusting loan raising cost proportionately is 9.08% which is calculated
in accordance with Ind AS 109 financial instruments.

13. Employee Benefits:

{2) During the financial vear, company has appointed 10 employees under FTFT. (Full Time
& Fixed Tenore). Hence, total employees in HNGPL role (s} and FTFT are 12 Nos.

(b} ANl shost-term emplovee benefits are recognized at the undiscounted aimount in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.
(£} The Company s contribution to the Provident Fund is based on a fixed percenage of the
eligible employee’s basic salary and debited to Statement of Profit and Loss.
fd) All long-term benefits such as Uratulty as applicable has been provided as per the
provision of Gratuity Act and Eamed Leave provisions gs per the approvied HR policy Tor
HNGPL employees.

14, Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(“MSMED Act, 2006™)

. — B . ...J...........
| 8. Mo, | Eaciouias | |24 (202223
I The principal amount and the interest due thereon Wil Nil

remaining unpaid 1w any supplier as at the end of each I
gocounting yoar I
2 The amount of interest paid by the buver in terms of | Mil Mil
section |16, along with the amounts of the payment '
made 10 the supplier bevond the appointed dav during
cach accounting year,

3 | The amount of interest due and pavable for the period Nil Nil
of delay in making payment (which have been paid bul |
bevond the appoimed day during the vear) but without
| adding the interest specified under this Act.

| The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid Mil Nil
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al the end of each accou nliﬁﬁ_&ﬂr and |

b The amount of further interest remaining dug and Wil Wil
payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23.

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium enterprises have been determined te
the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the

company,

13, Due to/from Sundry Parties
RBalances due to and due from sundry parties, balances of deposits, Financial Liabilities and
Curremt Assets are subject to Confirmation.

16. Related Party Disclosure:
A, The entire Equity Share Capital of the Company is held by GAIL Gas Limited and Bharat
Petroleum Corporation Limited, being the promoter companies.
B. Relatod Parties:
a) Relation and name of the related parties are:-
1. Promoter Venture: GAIL Gas Limited (A wholly owned Subsidiary of GAIL (India)
Limited) and Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited.
2. Associgte Company: GAIL (India) Limited.
3. Key Management Personnel:
i Chief Executive OfTicer- Mr. Mohit Bhatia
il Former Chiel Exccutive Officer — Mr, Ashok Ranjan Chaudhiry
fii.  Chief Financial Officer- Mr. Rajesh Agrawal
iv.  Company Sceretary- Ms. Shikha

b) Related Party Transactions'halances outstanding with related parties:

7 in {(Lakhs)

| SNe. | Particulars | Promoter | Associate | Key |

Venture | Company | Management
Personnel

A GAIL Gas Limited gl | -

[ Job  work Income  inclading | 700.53 : w |
Excise duty & GST

2 Reimbursement of Emploves | 38356 - -
Remuneration |
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3 Reimbursement of KMP (CFO) - - 111.19
Remuneraticn
4 | Interest Paid on Inter Corporate 89.35 - -
| Loan 2 —
5 Repayment  of Imercorporate | 375.00 .
Loan - =i
Total 1203.44 - LIL19
H Bharat Petroleum Corporation
Limited i i
| Reimbursement of Employee | §0.43 Z
. Remuneration
2 | Reimbursement of KMP (CEQ) - - K803
Remuncration . i
3 Reimbursement of KMP (Former | - - 16.13
CEO) Remuneration
4 Sale of CNG including Excise 2682.75 - -
[
5 Expenses paid against Facility | 25.61 - -
Charges including GST e}
|6 [Interest Paid on Inter Corporate | 89.30 - =
Loan
T Hepayment of Intercorporate | 375.00 - -
Loan
Total EEE 104.16
i " GAIL (Indin) Limited -
I | Eﬂpm.::'r.‘;_.ljt.l. account  of . 19.0%
Hooking-up Maintenance
. Facilities
2 Purchase of Gas including - 6:554.66
interest.
3 Supervision Charges claimed 857 5
against HNGPL  pipe line .
. damaged including GST. .
4 Pipe line leakage Gas Loss- = 0,68 a
| recovery.
- Permission  Charges paid 1o | .86
GAIL —_— -l
Total . 6584.86 -
E Company Secretary (HNGPL) : o
| - Remuneration - - 40K
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Oy Outstanding Balance as on 31-03-2024

Gail Gas Limited % in {Lakhs) | Status
(a) Job Wark 1 707 | Reccivable |
__ (b} Employee Heimbursement 1323 Pavable |
(c) Intercorporate Loan 75000 Pavable
Net Amount 78606 | Payable
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited | 2 in (Lakhs) Status
(a) CNG Sale 98.60 Receivable
() Employee Reimbursement — 1 412460 Pavable
{ti_lntermrpnmti: | oan | 5000 | F'.-aya_hi&
¢d) Fucility Charges B 2,94 | Payable |
~ Net Amount 16680 | Payable |
| Gail India Limited ' Fin (Lakhs)  Status
{a) Gas Purchase Alc 258.74 Payable
(b) Against Pipeline damaged §,23 Receivable
(c) Interest on Gas purchase delaved 24.47 Payahle
payment )
I Net Amount 27396 Payable

The above Related Party transactions do not account for the Expenses provisions made

iri the Financial Statements.

17, The details of amount paid/payable 1o auditors during the year: -

2 in {Lakhs)
Particulars [ 202324 [ 202223
" Statutory Audit Fee 118 (.88
Limited Review Fee E 0.71
Tax Audit Fee 018 08
“Cost Audit Fee T 04 oo
Internal Audit Fee 0.59 058 |
Secretarial Audit Fee 0.35 023 !
Travelling & Out of Pocket Expenses of auditory 0.35 0.00 |
Total _ ' D 280
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18. The Cash Flow Statement for Financial year 2003.2024 is prepared using “Indirect
Method™ of preparation of Cash Flow Statement in accordance with Ind AS 7.

19, Tax Expenses: -
In accordance with Ind AS-12 *INCOME TAXES'
Current Tax Expenses
{a) Provision for current Tax Expenses has been accouned fior on the basis of provision of
caction 115JR of Income Tax Act 1961 for 2 138,80 Lakhs {Previous Year 269,57
Lakhs) {Minimum Alternate tax-MAT). as the Income Tax payahle as per Normal
provision of Income Tax Aet 1961 is NIL due to brought forward Business Loss

(k) Deferred Tax Expenses/Income
Provision for Deferred tax has been sceounted for 2 226.98 Lakhs (Previous Year ¥ 118.76
Lakhs} on temporary differences of Tax Base of Fixed Assets as per Income Tax Act 196
and Accounting Base of Fixed Assets (Carrying Amount), unused Tax Loss and Lease
Assets & Liability shown under Note-30 of Audited Financial Statements.

20. Capital Commitment: -
The estimated number of contracts over ¥ 5,00 Lakhs amounting to # 2R06.20 Lakhs (PY %
364152 Lakhs) are remaining to be executed on Capilal Accounts and not provided for

21. Provision For liabilities (Project)
Provisional Hability of ¥ 228.14 Lakhs (PY ¥ 430.90 Lakhs) has been made in the boaks of
accounts a5 on 31 March. 2024 which will be settied as per actual bills,

22, In compliance of Ind AS 116 on Leases the Dhsclosure in the respect of |eases are as under:

(i) MNature of the lease transaction:

Land Lease

The company has taken two plots of Land on lease, the description of which are as follows:

8. | Location ofland | Date of lease | Lessor "Aren of  Lease premiom
L[ agreement  and Land and Stamp doty
lease term charges (Zim
- _ I *Lakhs)
| |[Khata No. 603 |25-00-201% khatn No. 605, | 01080 o
Khasra No. 97, | (30 Years) Khasra. No. 97, | Hectare | t132.28
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Gram Bhagwanpur,
Roorkee, Haridwar,
Littarakhand

2 | DRS Station, | 13-08-2020
Jwalapur, Haridwar, | (1  Year)
Uttarakhand management

Bhagwanpur

]
| Nagar  Migam,
with | Haridwar meler

estimation for 10

[ S

2 3.58 lakhs
Yearly (Present
value of lease

hold asset ¥ Ja. 08

Years
. Lalsrhﬁ}
Company as lessee (Disclosure as per Ind AS 116)
Al Lease Liahilities
(i) Reconciliation of Lease Liahilities: [# in Lakhs)
| Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March |
: 31,2024 31,2023
 Balance at April | 23.39 2191
- Additions -Ill.l-l-il'-IEE-t-lf-'lL‘ viear 1.33 148
Lease Lisbilities paid during the year (.00 0.00
Balance at March 31 B 24.72 23.39
Current 9.59 584
Non-Current 1513 17.55
(i Maturity analysis of Lease Liabilities: {2 in Lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31, 2024 3, 2023
Less than one vear (Current) H.59 S84
One to five years (Non-Current) 11.63 10.84
More than five vears 348 6.71
(iil} Cash outflow for leases during the vear ended 31* March, 2024 (¥ in Lakhs)
Particular Year ended March | Year ended March
| 31,2024 31,2023
| Principal Portion of Lease Linbility 000 0,00
| Intzrest Portion of Lease Liability 0.00 .00
| Expense refating to short-term leases 0.00 0,00
Expense relating to low value leases 0,04 0.00
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B) Right of Use Assots:

(#in Lskhs)

' Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31,2024 31,2023
Opening Balance =T 177.39 441.05
Add: Additions during the vear [Hooking Up) (.00 0,00
Less: Deletions during the year - 040 0,00
Less: Depreciation for the year 6166 63.66
Closing Balance 313.73 377.39

_I:",i Amounis recognised in Statement of Profit und Loss:

{2 in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended March | Year ended March
31,2024 31.2023
| Deprecigtion unﬁghl-uf'-um assels J 63.66 6366
| Interest expenses on lease liabilities 1.33 1.48
Expenses relating to short-term leases Nil il
| Expenses relating to low value assets feases Nl Mil
‘-.-"mﬁ]elea_se - payments N | _Hi] Mil

23, The company operates in a single segment of Nawral Gas Business; therefore, disclosure
requirements as per Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments™ arc not required. However. Entity-

wise disclosures are as below: -

Infsrmation about products and services:
The Company is in a single line of business of “Sale of Natural Gas™

Geographie Information:

The company operates presently in the business of Natwral Gas, including City Gas
Distribution in Haridwar GA. Accordingly, revenue from customers and all assets are locmed

in Haridwar GA only.
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24, Financial Instrument

24.1 Categories of financial instrument = (¥ in Lakhs)
| Particulars - Year ended Year ended
March 31,2024 March
31,2023
Financial assets at amortised cost —
Non- Current _
Trade Receivahle 4205 50,78 _
Current N ) o
“Trade Receivable 514,82 771.55
Cash and Cash equivalents gl 128436 2606.31
l.oans {Security Deposit) B ' 271, 2
Financial liabilities at amortised cost )
Mon- Current
Borrowings | 782631 9606.31
| Lease liahilities o 15.13 17.55
Trade Payable ' 305,18 (.00
Current B [ _
Rorrowings . | 782.(H) | 680,60
Lease liabilities - 959 | 384
Trade Payvable - 371217 r 95497 '
| Other financial liahilities 1155.68 | 181,79

24.2 Fair value measurements
The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are included a1 the amount that
would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between the market participants. The following methods and assumptions were used w
estimate the fair values.

- Trde receivable, cash and cash equivalenis. loans, Trade payable, other fnancial
liskilitics: Fair value approximate their carrying amounts largely due to shor-term
maturities of these instruments.

- The Company's lease liahilities and Borrowings are measured al amortised cost, which
approximates the fair value as on the reporiing date.

25, Revenue recognition & unbilled revenue of sale {(Natural gas)
The company has gencrally recognized revenue from sale of DPNG (Domestic piped natural
aais) on basis of spot billing done through its customized billing software (ERP)
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But in certain cases. the billing could not be possible due 1o locked/closed doors of homes,
Further, revenue has been recognised on provisional basis for the estimated units consumed
by the customers from the date they were billed till the date of balance sheet. In all these
cases, unbilled revenue has been recognized on estimated bhasis for Rs 81.39 lakhs by way of
computing estimated daily consumption of gas units based on the histonical consumption
pattern of last quarter at the rates applicable during that pericd. Where there is no historical
consumption data, the provisional consumption for the unbilled period is taken as NIL.
Further for new customers, provisional consumption is considered at the rate 0.42 SCMD
from the date of start of supply till the Balance Shee! date.

26. Gas Consumption reconciliation during the vear:

While preparing the reconciliation of Gas (PNG) for the period, it has heen observed that
there has been increase in the gas consumption ratio in comparison w PRNG sales volume
during FY 2023-24. In response, management representation was that there might be the
cases of meter calibrations and gas leakage in the line as project work was on halt due 1o fund
constraint, faulty meters, leakage of regulators. [t was also informed that there wre approx.
21311 RFC (ready for connection cases) and billing is done for 15757 cases based on JMR
received from the contractors. Follow-up actions on pending conversion from RFC to NG
with the contractors are in process. Auditor is of the view thal management of the company
needs to sirengthen its internal checks and controls and take all precautionary measures so
that gap occurrences between gas consumption vis a vis billing done are menimized.

27. Com putation of Diluted Earnings per Share (DEPS):

On 17" April 2023, company has issued equity shares of ¥ 4,276 Lakhs againsl the share
application money which was received on 10" March 2023 & 13™ March 2023, Since the
consideration for issue of shares has already been received, therefore DEPS for the Financial
Year 2023-24 has been calculated using 871.60 Lakh equity shares. same as Basic EPS,
However, since consideration was received in the preceding vear, Tor the purpose of
computing comparative DEPS Tor the Financial Yeur 2022-27, as per IND AS 33, DEPS has
been calculated by considering the impact of 427.60 Lakhs dilutive potential equity shares
also which were allotted during FY 2023-24,

28

During the financial year, company has noticed a case of Fraud/Misappropriation on the
sompany done by its Billing manager hired through third pany contractor, M/s Justin Global
Services, Delhi, during realisation of DPNG recovery from its customers in cash. The
intimation of the same was given o stannory auditors on 27 March 2024,

Company has conducted investigation of the same through an independent CA firm Mg
Demlani & Associates, Haridwar,
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249,

3l

31

3.

3.

As per the Investigation Report dated 3nd April, 2024 on the same matier by M/, Demlani &
Associates, Chartered Accountants, fraud/'misappropriation of Rs, 6.60 Lakhs was reported.
Cut of this, an amount of Rs. 4.40 Lakhs has been deposited in the HNGPL hank sceount by
the Billing Manager and rest amount of Rs. 2,19 Lakhs entered in customer sccount through
POS time 1o time. As on datz of finalisation of sccounts, entire amount has been recovered

by the company. The investigation report has been submiited to stawtory auditors on 6
April 2024,

Druring the physical verification of inventories, no material discrepancies were observed,
Provision for slow-moving and non-moving inventory of Rs NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL)
has been provided. Further a sum of Rs. 0,49 Lekhs (Previous Year Rs. NIL) has been
written off on account of shomages/damages observed on physical verification ol furniture
fixtures and office equipments,

The management has sent notices to 60 DPNG customers (P. Y. 31 Customers) for recovery
of outstanding dues amounting 1o Rs. 11.72 lakhs. Further, provision of doubtful debis of Rs.
32.69 lakhs (P. Y. Rs. 3.18 Lakhs) against DFNG Debtors has been created as per the
approved company pelicy.

Additional information pursuani to the provisions of paragraph S{viii} of Part 11 of

Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013 are as per Annexure - 1 to the Financial
Statements.

Additional Regulatory Information as per Schedule 11 to the Companies Act 2013 are
as per Annexure - 1T 1o the Financial Statements.

Undisclosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts

that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments
under the Incomestax Act, 1961,

34. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

During the vear, company was not falling under the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 related to Corporate Social Responsibilicy.
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35. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Corrency

The Company has net traded or invested in Crypeo currency or virtual currency during the
current peried ended as at 315t March 2024,

36. All the figures are shown in Lakhs for preparation of Financial Statement.

37. Previous Year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to correspond
with the current vear's ¢lassification/disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajesh Aggrawal Muohit Bhatia -éh:‘hhn

{CFO) (CEO) 'lll (CS)

PAN- ADYTPAIZIE PAN-ABAPBO115A PAN-GRPPS3I230G
LA %@/

Ajay Sinha Chérchil Gupra Ashish Goyal TV Pandivan

Director Director Director Chairman

IXIN-(8S88T27 DIN- jogo /sy 2. IMIN-IS92 775 DIN-0S5RT 136

As per our report of even date

For Hemant Arora & Co. LLP

w,  Chartered Accountants
b FR_-"-'- T A1 A HHING

! CA. Hemani K Arora

Fariner
M. No.: 071262

Place: js, e
Date: 257 Age, / ;/_5_,
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Annexure - I

Additional information pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 5{viii} of Part I of Schedule III

to the Companies Act, 2013 are as follow -

{8} Value of imports calculated en CIF basis by the company during the fi

nancial year in respect of

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2024
Amount in ¥ Lakhs

For the year ended
31st March,2023
Amount in '? " Lakhs

Raw Materials
Lomponents and spare parts
Capital Goods

(b} Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account of

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2024
Amount in ‘¥ Lakhs

For the year anded
31st March,2023 !
Amount in "¥ Lakhs

Rovality

Technical Know-How

Professional and Consultation Fee
Subscription Expenses

Commission & Sales Promotion Expenses
Exhibition

Periadicals

Travelling Expense
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{d) The amount remitted during the year |n ferelgn Currencies on account of divid

ends with a specific
mention of the tetal number af non-resident shareholders : Nil [ P, ¥, - iy

(2] Eamings in Forelgn Exchange classified under the fellowing heads namely

Particulars For the year ended | For the year endad

31st March,2024 31zt March, 2023

Aw_w

Export of goads calculated on FOB Basis

Rovality, Know-how, Professional and Consultation Fieg
Inkterest and Dividerd

Dther Income
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(v} Detalts of B=nam| Praperty haid:

Tretre are no propeedings meiabed oF are aending againt the Company for holding aay Denam| propery ursder the Probibition of B&nami Property
Trangactions Aet, 1068 snd rulss madg thereunder.

(¥ii} BORROWINGS OBTAINED ON THE BASIS OF SECURITY OF CURRENT AEEETS

The Company does not nawe any wanctaned workirg captal livets From Barks & Francial Instivans cn the basls of SEOUnty of Cormant Esets.
(i) Wikl Defaulter

The Cempany had fist been doclares wilful defpuke by any bank oF financil instituticn o QOVEmmEnt or any

gesermmant dutharity (o5 defined uncer the A<T) or consortiom thareaf, i acoordanse with the guicefees an wilfyl

defrulbers isEund By the Reseree Bask of incia.

(ix]) Relatiorshlp with struck off Companias:

The Company dess rot hawe any Uiansactions wim struck off companies Lnder ssctar 243 of the Companies Act, 2043

(%) Raglstration of charges or satisfaction with Reglstrar of Compasias:

e Company does not haws any charges e sasisfactan which = FEL 13 b registered alth hi Meglsrer of Companies
(ROCH beyong the statutory panad

1=k} Complimnce with number of layers of ComiEanbes;

The company & a foint senture of GAIL Gas Limbed {5 wihally owneo subzid@ey of GAIL {Irdia] Umibgd and Dharat
Petroleurm Camporation Umibed with equs! share Holding pattern. The compery doesnct hayve any Sulsidary.

Prapasrtien (%) of Fropartion (%] of
Country ol Sharahilding az on | Sharshaolding as on
3 M
K- 0 it s Gy Incorporation 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
fear emnded Yaar eaded
1 [wia N WA hih

[xil} Disclosure of Ratlos:

The Rallos prescrived in Schedule 111 of Comaares Act, 2013 for F.¥. 203324 and exglaration in FEgArd to maar change exceeding 15%
fram Preceding yuar & as per Annexure = L to the Fnancial SEatersnts

[=Hi} Complancs swith apareved Schamats) of Arrangomants:

The Compeny bes nct made any CUmMpromises, arrangements and emalgamaticrs dinng the o

[xiv]) Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premism:

{11 The: Sompany Bae not advancad ar leaned ar invested funds 1o any. aifer PEFEONS Cr antites, FICkicFng farsign enbties {Inbermedianes]
with the underranding that the Iniesmediary shad:

(2] Directly or Indrectly end orinvest in other persans ar snkes identfed in #fy-manner whaticewer by oron behaif & the company
iUitmate Beneficares] o

(b} Provide any Querantes, secarily or Bhe ke 1o oF on Sehall of the ditimats Beneficlarigs

[} The Compang' R not recelved any fund fram ary persens ar snteies, induilig farsign enkities (Funding Party) with the undersTamning
[wiither recorded |/ weting of othervieg) that the Company dal:

{a) Qirectly or indrecly I8nd ar mwest In other perEons oF antined identified i any masne- shateosver by 21 on behalf of tre Fursling Party
[Uitimante: Bensficieries), oo

(o) Frovice any guarantes, security or the 1 on BERST BF the Lltimate Benaficarie:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members,

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

(A Joint Venture of Gail Gas Ltd. & Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd
Registered Office at. COCO-CNG Slation,

Jawzlapur, Harldwar, Ultarakhand-243404

Opinion: .

We have audited the accompanying slandaiona finaneial statements of Mis Haridwar
Natural Gas Private Limited {“the Company”} which comprises the Balanee Shesf as
at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Prafit and Loss {including other comprehensive
incmme), stalernent of cash flows for the year then ended Statement of Changes in
Equity and noles ts the standalone financial Elatemenis, including a summany of
significant accounting policies and other axplanatory information.

In conformity with the accounting principies generally accepted in India including the
Indian Actounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with

the state of affairs of the Company as at Mareh 31, 2024, and its profit fincluding other

Comprehensive incomes), Changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that
daie,

\
Dehradun Office. 1, Tyag Road, Duheadun S4R00TT e T +07 136 026785 Fax  +31 135 837765
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Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements saction of aur
report. We are independent pf the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issied by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relavant tg our audit of the Standalons Financial Statements
under the pravisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we
have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion.

Emgﬂasig of Matters

1. During the year, the company has been defrauded by its third-party Billing Manager
for ¥6.60 Lakhs, out of which ¥ 066 Lakhs ie recoverable as at year end
Furthermere, as on date of finalisation of accounis entire amount has beep
recovered by the company. Refer Note 31.28 to financial statement and clause (xi) of
‘Annexure B' of our Audit Repart.

2. Slow-moving inventory for capital Projects amounting to 2219.82 Lakhs (aged over 3
years) and nen-moving inventory of capital projects {aged over 5 years) for T287 41
Lakhs aggregates ¥507 23 L3 khs as at the year end. The management has made no
provisions against the same; therefors, adequacy of provision cannot be
substantiated. Refer MNote 31 29 o the Financial Statements.

3. The company has provided for employee henefits aggregate lo ¥ 0.94 Lakhs on
account of Gratuity (30 49 Lakhs) and Earmed Leave Encashment (2045 Lakhs),
which is not in line with provisions stated in Ind AS 19 — Employees Benefits as
require by the Companies Act 2013 Refer Note 31 13 to the Financial Statements,

Our opinian is not qualified in respect of the matters stated above,

her r

1.As at vear end, there I8 a net difference of 16636 lacs in DPNG
debtors/Security/Application fee between Billing ERP and Accounting Software Tally*
which is as follows:
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FinLakhs

Particulars Amount as per Impact on
;ﬁ;:m;t EE? p:: accounting financial l
SR.NO. ?EFIP: software statements
(A) (Tally Prime) { Differential)
. (B) (B-A)
Security from DPNG
1 | customers: - - - = = ]
(a) For Gas 158.070 158315 | =0.755 |
(b} For Meter 285,980 | 285210 -0.770
| Application Fee Income
(including Prior years)
9 As par ERP 33605
Registration
As Per Tally: 32815 .
| Registration 100 815 | 08,445 | -2.370
Total Security/Registration 545 865 541,870 -3.885
charge (Payabie) (&)
' DPNG Debtors o
3 (Recaivable) - Net (B)
210,244 | 242.885 12 T4
Total 16.636 |

* The DPNG Debtors as per Tally amounting to # 222.685 Lakhs are net of
realisation #5226 Lakhs received from the DPNG Debtors on 1% April 2024,
* The difference (A) of * 3.895 Lakhs shortly shown (n Tally as recoverable fram

the DPNG debtors.

* The difference (B) of  12.741 Lakhs shortly in ERP and shown as recoverahle

from DPNG Deblors in ERP.

* This amount of # 12 741 Lakhs has been wit

contractor Mfs Justin Global, Delhi. as per th
their outstanding bills lying with the company.

hheld by the cempany from the
e letler dated 9" April 2024 from

I's noled that the impact of differences at {A) has not been provided in the
accounting scftware (Tally) and impact of differences at (B) has not been provided in

the Billing Software ERP

Mana ent's R onsibility for sta

nancial st

ments: -

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with fespect lo the preparation and presentation of these standalone

financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial
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performance including ether Comprahensive Income, Changes in Equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generaily accepted in
India, including the |ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 123
of the Act. read with the Companigs (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsivility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
recorcs in accordance with the provisions of the Act far safeguarding the asseats of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectivaly for ensuring the accuracy and
compieteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements thal give a true and fair view and are frea from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or efror.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management |5 responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a geing concern,. disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to geing concern and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless managemant sither intends o liguidate the Company or to cease
cperations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversesing the company's financial
reporing process.

Our objectives are {o obtain reasonabla assurance about whether the standalone
financial staternents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether dus to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonahle
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or emor and are considered material if Individually
OF in aggregate. they could reasonably be expedied to influence the sconomic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We are also’

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
slatements, whether due to fraud ar error, design and perorm audit procedures

Page 105 of 100



fesponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

Collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the averride of internal
contral

= Ubtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in erder fo
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
T43(3)(i) of the Act, we are alsp responsible for EXpressing our opinien on whether the
Company has an adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controle,

* Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting palicies usad and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concerm. If we conclude that 3 material uncertainty exists,
WE are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuras in the
standalone financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadeguate. 1o modify our
opinion. Cur conclusions are based an the audit evidence obtained up to the date of gur
auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Compary to cease
to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statemenis
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation, Materiality is the magnitude ol misstatements in the standalone financial
statements that, individually or |n aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements
may be influenced We consider Quantitativve materiality and qualitative factors in (j)
planning the scope of our audit wark and in evalualing the results of our work; and (i) to

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal cantrol that we identify during our audit.
——,
£ PRORA 25
i » .
(/v shape

I :|'r ﬂc-fﬁiEE
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We also provide thosze charged with governance with a statement that we have
comphed with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matlers We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extramely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier
shouid not be communicated in our report becaysa the adverse consequences of doing
50 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communicaticn,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirements: -

(1) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

(@l We have sought and obtained ail the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

(B} In our oginion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it 2ppears from our examination of those books,

(¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the other
comprenhensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cagh Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 as amendead,

(2) On the basis of the written fepresentations received from the directors as an L
March, 2024, laken on record by the Beard of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31% March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Sub-section (2) of Section 184 of the Act,

(fi  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls ever the financial

reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate repor in ‘Annexure A'
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(8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. The

company not being Public Company, the provisions of section 187(16) are not
applicable.

(h) With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditors Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in

aur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us that:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

(il The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferrad to the Investor
Educatien and Protection Fund by the Company,

{iv) As per the Management Representation, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disciosed in the notes to the account no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested | either from borrowed funde or ghare
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
ofher parsons or entities, including foreign enlities (“intermediate”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
Persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guaraniee, security or
the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(vl As per the Management Represantation, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the account, no funds have
been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entibes (“funding parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise. that the company shall, whether, diractly or indirectly
‘end or invest in other Persons or entities identified in any manner
whalsoever by ar on behaif of the “funding party" ("ultimate beneficiaries”) or

provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate
beneficiaries : and
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(vil Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances; nothing has come to their notice that has
Caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (iv) and (v)
contain any material misstatement.

(vii} Since the company has not declared or paid dividend during the year, hence
we have not commented upon the compliance with section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013, in this regard, as this clause is not applicable to the
company for the concemed financial year.

{viii} Based on our examination which ncluded test checks, the company has
used an accounting software Tally for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trall (edit log) facilty and the same has
operated with effect from 3 April, 2023 for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software throughout the year. Furiher, during our audit we dig not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
Additionally, the audit trall has bean preservad by the company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention.

(£} As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013, we give in the 'Annexure B' a statement on the matlers specified in paragraphs 3
& 4 of the order,

(3) As required by Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 refer "Annexure C-
attached.

For HEMANT ARORA & CO. LLP

FRN : 002141C/C400008

&/

CA HEMANT K ARORA
PARTNER

M.NO. 071262
UDIN : 24107282 BKFDWT &858

PLACE : NO1DA
DATE: 25.04. 24
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ANN RE 'A' TO EP ENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referrad to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’ |

We have audiled the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mis Haridwar
Natural Gas Private Limited (‘the Company’) as of March 31. 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the Slandalcne financial stalements of the Company for the year ended and
as on that date

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controle based on the internal cantrol over financial reporting criteria
established by the Cempany consdering the essential components of mlernal contral
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financia!
Reporting issued by the Insiitute of Chartered Accountants of India (the 'Guidance
Mote') These respensibilities Include the design. implemenation and maintenance of
aceguate internal financial controls thal were cperaling effectively for ensuring the
orderdy and efficient conduct of its business, ncluding adherence to Company's policies.
the saleguaiding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds ang errorg, the
accuracy and completenass of the accaunting records, and the timiely preparation of
reliable financial information. as tequired under the Companies Act 2013

Auditors' Responsibility

Owr rasponsibility is to EXPress an apinion on the Company's internal financial controls
aver financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with

the Guidance Mete on Audit of Intemal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Mote™) and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be

= =
A e MORY -
ol &
B RGA
T A A |
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prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o
cbtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained ang If such controls cperated
effectively in all material respecis.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial cantrols over financial reparting Included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assasaed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence for financial accounting in Tally package, we have
obtained, is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis far gur audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial contral gver
financial rsporting includes those policles and procedures that (1) pertain to tha
maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail dcCurately and fairly reflect the
ransactions and dispositions of the assels of the company; (2) provide reascnabile
dssurance that transactions are recorded as Necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone financial statements In accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with autharizations of management and diractors of the company, and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorizad

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the Standalone financial statements.
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Inharent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or iImproper management override of controls,
matenal misstatemants due to error or fraud may cccur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject fo the risk that the internal financial controis over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

In ERP- DPNG biliing software, which is not integral part of the Financial Accounting
package (Tally). on the basis of Point 1 of 'Emphasis of Matter’ and Point 1 of ‘Other
Matter' Sections of our Audit Report, we repart that there is ineffective Internal Control
systam of Billing ERP software used by the company.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the inaffactiveness described above on
the achievement of the objectives of the control criterta, the Company has maintained
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal contral
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Ceontrols Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accouniants of india,

For HEMANT ARQRA & CO. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002141C/C400006

e~

CA. HEMANT K ARORA |
PARTNER --‘%
M.NO. 071262 ey

UDIN : 2411262 GKEDW T8SBI

—

PLACE : Nb6TDbA
DATE : 35.0U.2y
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NEXURE ‘B' TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REF T

Statement referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the
members of Haridwar Matural Gas Private Limited on the accounis for the
year ended as on 31st March, 2024,

In terms of the infermation and explanalion given 10 us and the books and
records examined by us in the nomal course of audit and 1o the best of our
knowledge and belief. we state that

(i} (&) In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment: -
{4} The company s maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
nciuding guantitative detfails and situation of Property, Plamt and
Equipment

(B} The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
Intangicle assels

(b} These Propery, Plant and Equipment have been physically verifiad by the
managemeanl al reasonable intervals, which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard fo the size of the company and nature of its assets Mo material
discrepancies were noticed or such ch ysical verification,

i) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the besis
of our examination of the records of the company, we report that the fitle
deeds of all the immovable properies (Other than properies where the
Company is the lessee and the |ease agreements are duly executed in favor

of the lezsee) disclosed in the financial staterments are heid in the name of the
comparny,

Dehradun Office ' Tyag Road Denradun 248001 Inda Tel 09 135 SAPATES Fax - +81 135 g2rrus
Delhi(MCR) OMlce . W1117-1115. DL¥ Gakena Tower 1110 Floor DLF Phase Iv. Gurgaan 122002 India Tel - +91 124 2570858 Fax «51 124 PETRORE
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d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Egquipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (i){d) are not applicable to the company,

¢} According to the informatian and explanations given to vz and on the
basis ef our examination of the records of the company, we report that no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for
holding any Benami property under the "Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 and Rules made there under

(i} (a) The physical verification of inventary other than Natural Gas has been
conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion, the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate; No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class
of inventory were not noticed an physical verification

As explained to us, having regard to the nature of the inventory of natural oas,
management has followed policy for estimation of natural gas guantities
which is based on volume of Pipelines and the volume cascades containing
the natural gas considering standard lemperature and pressure whereas
opening stock of gas has bean arrived at on the basis of book balances sinee
a5 per the management It is not possible as gas is flowing continuously in
pipelines

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the company, we report that during
any point of time of the year the Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of 75 Crores, in aggregate, frem barks or financial
institutions  on the basis of security of current assets: Therefore, the
provisions of clause (){b) are not applicable to the company. hence not
commentad upon.

liii}  During the year the company has not made investments in. provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of lpans,
secured or unsecured o companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties Therefors clauses (i), of the order are not applicable 1o the
Company, hence not commented Lpon.

(W) I our opinion and according to information and explanation given fo us, the
company has not granted Loans & Advances, made Investments or provided
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guarantee or security to any party to which the provisions of Section 185 and
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply, Tharefore, the provisions of
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the CARO 2020 are not applicable to the
company, hence not commented upon.

(v) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no
deposits accepted by the Company or amounts which are desmed to be
deposits, Therefare, the provisions of clauss (v) of paragraph 2 of the CARO
2020 are not applicable 1o the tompany, hence not commented upon,

(vil  According to the information and explanation given to us, Central government
has specified the maintenance of cost records u/s 148{1) of companies act
2013 and such records have been made and maintained,

(vii)  In Respect of Statutory Dues: -

(a) According to the records of the company, the company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and service Tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, c&ss and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate  authorities. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no amears of cutstanding
statulory dues are pending as at the 31st March 2024 concernad for a
period of more than six months from the date. they became payable.

(b} According to the information and explanation given to us there are no
statutory dues referred to in sub-clayse (@), which have been deposited on
account of any dispule.

Wi} According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no
‘ransactions which are not recorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act 1861, Therefore, the provisions of clause (vill) of
garagraph 3 of the CARO 2020 are nat applicable to the company, hence not
commented upon

(ix](3) According to the informatien and explanation given to us, the company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or ather borrowings or in the payment of
Interest thereon to any lender. Therefore, the provisions of clause (ix}{a) are
not applicable to the company, hence not commented upon.
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(b} According to the information and explanation given fo us, the company is
not a declared willful defaulier by any bank or financial institution ar ather
lender. Therefore, the provisions of clayse (ix}{b) are not applicable to the
company.

{c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has applied term loan for tha purpose for which they are obtained.

{d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not raised any shor-term funds Therefore, the provisions of clause
(ix}d} are not applicable to the company,

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or tg meet
the obligations of its subsidiarias, associates or joint ventures. Therefora, the
proavisions of clause (ix)(e) are not applicable to the company.

(f) According to the inforrmation and explanation given to us the Company has
not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Therefore, the provisions

of clause (ix)(f) are not applicable to the company, hence not commentad
upon.

(%) {a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (Including Debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3ixja) Is not applicable to the company, hence nol commented
upon.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us the Company
has Issued 42760000 €quily shares of 210 each for total consideration of
24276 Lakhs through right issue to the existing shareholders during the year.

(¥} (&) In sur opinion and according to the information and explanation given to
us a frauda'rnmapprupriatiun on the company has been noticed by the
management and informed to us vide letter rel no.: HNGPLF&AFRALD
CASEI01/23-24 dated 27th March, 2024 that fraud‘misappropriation under a
3rd party contract of DPNG Billing invalving prima facia of the outsourced
Billing Manager awarded to Mis Justin Global Services for Hiring faor
carrying  Meter Reading, Bill Generation, Bill Distribution Customer
Ralatiunship Management (CRM} activities Including revenus recovery for
DPNG, Commercial and Indusiral Customers in Haridwar GA™ has taken
place, As per the Investigation Report dated 3rd April, 2024 on the same

__::':_ = S,
o Ir.?.ﬂﬂ.‘fd_. T
T i
A .-"'l-_\l'!-\- -\.'l.-q.‘;.
L

'-t "_:"-r"' J,-"_'_I':l|‘

Page 116 of 122



matler by Mis. Demlani & Associates, Chartered Accountants,
fraud/misappropriation of 16,60 Lakhs was reported,

(b] No repoert under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act is
required to be filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014 with the Central Government gs
the fraud involved is leszer than 1 crore with respect to above mentioned
matter is already informed to Board of Directors vide Ref 2023-24/008 dated
Bth April, 2024,

(c) According to infermation given fo us, there are no whistle-blower
complaints against the company.

{«il]  The company is not a Nidhi Company Accordingly, paragraph 3(xit) of the
Order is not applicable to the company, hence not commented upon

(xlii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in accordance with Section 177 and Section 188 of
the Companies Act 2013 and details of such ftransactions have been
disclosed in the Standalone financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) The company has established an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.
(b} The reports of the Internal Auditor issued for the F Y. 2023-24 weara
considered by us.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had
not entered into any nen cash ransactions with directors ar persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order iz not
applicable to the com pany, hence not commentad upaon,

(¥¥1)  In our opinion, the Company is nof requirsd to be registered under Section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 Accordingly, paragraphs
3(xvi)(a)/(bpiciid) of the Order are not applicable to the company, hence not
commented upon,
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{xvii} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not incurred cash Iosses in the Financial Year and in the immediataly
preceding financial year,

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year,

Accordingly, paragraph 3xwiii) of the Order is not applcable to the company,
nence not commented upon,

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization
of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, ather information
accompanying the financial statements. in our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncerainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a periad of one year from the balance sheet date.

(xx) The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 towards Corporate
Social Responsibility are not applicable on the company. Therefore, the
provisions of clause (xx) of the Order |s not applicable to the company.

(xxi) As per our cpinion and to the best of our knowledge, there are no
Subsidiaries, Joint venture or Associate companies of the auditee cCompany.

Therefore clause (xxi), of the order is not applicable to the company, hence
not commented upon.

For HEMANT ARORA & CO. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN : 002141C/C400006 =
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HEMANT ARORA & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

nnexure -
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in dent ' Report

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

For the year ended on 31" March 2024

DIRECTIONS UNDER SECTION 143(5) OoF COMPANIES

ACT, 2013
; i i Impact on
H;:. | Directions | Auditor's Remarks Financial
. _ Statements
| ~ |On e bass o nformation  ang il
Bxplanation given to us and on the basig of
| our  examingtion of the records of
| Whether the company has | company, the company has system in
Bystem n place 1o Process | place in process all tha azcounting
ak the accounting | transactions through IT system le, Tally
transactions through 1T | Prime, However, for the Purpose of billing
system? f  yes  tha to customers, a specialised ERP system
1 implications of processing of namely ERP billing system from Mis | Rs. 16.638
accounting transaction | Vaibhy Infra Tech India Pvt. Lid s in | Lakhs
cutside IT syetem on the | place. On tha basis of audit procadures
integrity of the accounts | carmed on the [T SYSlems. our opinion s
| along  with  the financial | that all accounting transsction recorded in
| IMplications, if any, May be | separate bilfing scftware is duly recorded
stated n Tally Prime [Accounting Software).
. | However, there are cerain fransaction m
| ERP (Biling software) which are o be
| ] - — . reconciled as enumerated in Annexure-1
| Whether thare s any | According 1o the  informaton and =
| restructuring of an axisting | explanations given to us and based on
2 |lean  or  cages  of | the examination of the records, there are NIL
walver'write cff of | no restructuring of lean or Ccases of
debtsfloansiinterest  ae waiveriwrite off of cebtslioans/interest
|rnan'a by & lender to the- 8. made by a lender o the nm-mnnﬂ
(Fo=55R\
r' :-_'."Ir n.clcﬁ:EE r"E-“i|ll
‘ /i
o
. :;1':“
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.

|

Whether funds (grants /

company dus 1o the
company's  inability to
repay the lcan? If yes, the
financial impact may be
stated

due to the cormpany's inability to repay |
the loan during the year under audit
Hence noc comments are made on
requirement of Direction No 2.

subsidy etc )
receivedireceivable for
specific schemes from
Central/State Government
or ils agencies were
propery accounted for
utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cazaes

| of deviation. |

We have been informed that no such
funds (grants / subsidy etc ) have been
recaivediraceivable from central/state MiL
agencies. Hence no comments are
made on requirement of Direction No 3,

For HEMANT ARCRA & CO. LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN - 002141C/C400006

s/

CA. HEMANT K ARORA.
FARTHER

M.NO. 071262
UDIN : 240726 2ZBKFD WIS SE |

PLACE - N&8IDA
CATE | 250w 24
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Annexure 1 to Annexure - C to the Independent Auditors’

Statement showin
billing software (ER

Haridwar Natural Gas Private Limited

g difference betweeen financial tra
PF) vis-a-vis Accounting software (T

Report of

nsactions / balances as per
ally prime) for the year ended

as on 31st March 2024

P in Lakhs

Amount a8 per Amount as per | ?;;':::I:T

SR.NO. Particulara Billing Software Accounting Eaftuurn Staemisnta

(ERP) [Talky Prima)
(Al (&) {Differential)
(B-A)

Security from DPNG customers. - - - -

1 3] For Gas 158.070 158,315 -0.755
(6] For Mater 285 980 285210 -0.770
Apphcation Fee Income {ineluding
Prior yeers)

% As par ERP | 33805 Registration
As Per Tally : 32815 Registration 100.815 08 445 -2 :!-'-"IZI_.

Tetal Security / Regisiration Charga
yFayabie) (i) 545 B8RS E41.670 -3, 895
3 lors™ (Mecenahe] (i 210244 222 585 12,741
]‘r-!al 16.636

Tha OPNG Detlors as per Talty amo
the DPNG Dabtors on 1st April 2024,
The afference (A) of ¥ 3.895 Lakhs gh
The difference (8} of 7 12,741 Lakhs

-
[ wif -
-1- L
L= A 4
e NEmand o
! o proondt:

ortly shawn in Taily a3 recoverable fram the DPNS debiors
shortly in ERP and shown as recoversiie from DPNG Debtors in ERP

unting to ¥ 222 985 Lakks are nat of reslisation ¥ 5.226 Lakhs recelved from
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HEMANT ARORA & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants
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Compliance Certificate

We have conducted Audit of annual accounts of Mis Haridwar Natural Gas Private
Limited for the year endad 31% March 2024 in acoordance with the directions/sub-
directions issued by the CAAG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Agt,

2013 and centify that we have tomplied with all the Direction/sub-direction issued tor
us

For HEMANT ARQRA & CO. LLP

CHARTEREDACCOUNTANTS
FRN  D02141C/C400008 ARORL
.- .-’-':’ﬁff%mq 41:'?\
; L / '.Jlr“f W \q#\r;r"l'l'
‘\fr I 'T'( HGIﬂkEE I;IIII
- L N
[ R .g.'-/;
CA HEMANTKARORA 2 {:'_”,f'_";r;fgﬁ/
PARTNER R
MNO. 071252

UDIN 29071246 28KFDWIESE]

PLACE - MoIDA
DATE - 25.04.2%
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